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RETRAYISION

RETRAVISION FINANCE (WA) LTD

ABN 77 079 440 494

DEBENTURE PROSPECTUS NO 11

FOR THE ISSUE OF FIXED TERM AND AT CALL DEBENTURES

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Important Notice

This Prospectus is dated 4 February 2008
and was lodged with the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission
("ASIC") on 4 February 2008. ASIC takes no
responsibility for the contents of this
Prospectus.

Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd (the
"Company”} will not apply for any
Debentures offered under this Prospectus to
be listed on the ASX or rated by any ratings
agency.

The Company is not authorised under the
Banking Act 1959 and is not supervised by
the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority, Your investment will not be
covered by the depositor protection
provisions in section 13A of the Banking Act
1859.

No Debentures will be issued on the basis of
this Prospectus later than 28 February 2009,
on which date this Prospectus will expire.

Before deciding to invest in the Debentures
offered under this Prospectus, applicants
should read the entire Prospectus.

In considering the prospects for the
Company, potential investors should
consider the financial information set out in
the Prospectus and the attached financial
reports and the risk factors that could affect
the ability of the Company to repay the
Debentures and pay interest on the

Debentures. Potential investors should
carefully consider these factors in light of
personal circumstances {including financial
and taxation issues) and seek professional
advice from an accountant, stockbroker,
lawyer or other professional adviser before
deciding whether to invest,

Nature of Investment

We advise all potential investors that the
Debentures offered under this Prospectus
should not be confused with a bank deposit.
A debenture carries with it additional risks,
conditions and obligations for both the
issuer and the investors, than a standard
bank deposit product,

Intarest Rates

The Company reserves the right to vary the
interest rates and/or length of term applying
to the Debentures offered under this
Prospectus.

Such variation will apply only to applications
lodged con or after the date of variation. For
Fixed Term Debentures, following
acceptance of your application by the
Company, the interest rate applicable to
your Debentures will remain unchanged
throughout their term. The interest rate
applicable to At Call debentures is variable.

Before deciding to invest in the Debentures
offered under this Prospectus, applicants
should telephone the Company on

{08) 9202 3333 to confirm the current term

lengths and interest rates for the
Debentures.

Applications

The Application for Debenture form
(“Application Form") included in this
Prospectus may only be distributed ifit is
included in, or accompanied by, a
completed and unaltered copy of this
Prospectus and the Company will only
accept a completed Application Form if it
has reasonable grounds to believe that
the Application Form was provided to the
investor with a complete and unaltered
copy of this Prospectus.

Exposure Perlod

Under the Corporations Act 2001, the
Company is not permitted to process
applications in the period of 7 days after
the date of lodgment of this Prospectus
with ASIC. ASIC may extend this period
for up to a further 7 days. No preference
will be conferned on Applications received
during this period.

No guarantee

Retravision (W.A.) Limited {"Retravision"),
the ultimate holding company of the
Company does not guarantee the
repayment of money borrowed under this
Prospectus or interest due in respect of
the Debentures.
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Key information

Date of Prospectus 4 Fehruary 2008

Periad which applications for Debentures will be accepted 11 Febeuary 2008 to 28 February 2009

Number of Debentures available under this Prospectus Any number that does not cause the Company to exceed the debt limits
imposed under the Trust Deed.

Price per Debenture . $0.01

Minimum Application Afount $500

Types of Debentures Offered ) Fixed Rate or Ar Call

Interest Rate on Fixed Term Debentures Fixed rate for the term of the Fixed Term Debenture. The interest rates
currently applicable are available by calling the Company on (08) 9202 3333

Repayment of Fixed Term Debentures At end of fixed term (“Matunty Date™) of either 3, 6 or ¢ monthsor 1, 2 or
3 years

Interest Rate on At Call Debentures Variable rate as advised by the Company from time to time. The interest
rates currently applicable are available by calling the Company on (08) 9202
3333.

Repayment of At Call Debentures ' At 24 hour call

The above key information is a summary only. Potential investors should read this entire Prospectus and the Important tnformation section on the
cover page of this Prospectus. The period for which Debentures will be accepted is indicative only and the Company has the right to vary this
period, including by closing the offer under this Prospectus eary.

Company Profile

Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd ("the Company™) was incorparated in Westem Australia on 3 September 1997. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Retravision (WA} Ltd ("Retravision"}.

Retravision was founded in 1961 and today there are 42 Retravision franchised retail stores throughout Westem Australia. Operating revenue of
Retravision for the financial year ended 30 June 2007 was $374 million and, as at 30 June 2007, it had gross assets of $70 million. Retravision,
through its franchised stores is a leading electrical household goods retailer in Western Australia. Retravision, through its wholly owned subsidiary
Electcom Ltd (“Electcom”™), is also a franchisor of outlets under the names of Fridge & Washer City, which has 10 stores in Westem Australia,
West Coast Hi Fi, which has 10 stores in Westem Australia, Best Buy Electrical, which has 10 stores in Westem Australia and 1 in South
Australia, as well as 1 store in the Northem Temitory under the name Murray QOakley. Retravision also operates in South Australia and the
Northern Territory, through its wholly owned subsidiary Retravision D.A.D. Ltd, with 6 owned stores and 27 franchise stores. Retravision also
retails through two separate buying groups in South Australia known under the brands Truscotts, which has 8 stores, and Phone Xpress, which
has 14 stores. The number or stores referred to in this paragraph is stated as at the date of this Prospectus and may change.

The Company was established to operate as a finance company to receive deposits from members of Retravision and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, franchisees of Electcom, thelir officers, employees, associates or families, the officers, employees and associates of Retravision and
Electcom and such other persons as the directors determine from time to time. These deposits are made by persons subscribing for Debentures
in the Company, such as those offered under this Prospectus (the “Debentures”).

Compliance with ASIC Regulatory Guide 69

In October 2007 ASIC released Regulatory Guide 69: Debentures-improving disclosure for retail investors. This sets out various benchmarks to
be followed and reported upon in a prospectus to address areas of risk in investing in unlisted debentures. Note that only six of the eight
benchmarks discussed are relevant to the Company, with benchmarks 7 and 8 cnly being applicable to issuers invoived in real property
development. The Company does not have any investments either directly or indirectly, in real property. The Company intends to continually
comply with these benchmarks, except for where it has provided explanation as to why the benchmark has not or will not be met. The
benchmarks are discussed below and potential investors are referred 10 relevant sections of this Prospectus where applicable:

Benchmark 1: Equity Capital

This benchmark requires issuers of unlisted debentures are required to confirm whether they meet a minimum equity benchmark of 8%, being
equity divided by borrowings and equity combined,

The Company meets this benchmark.

The Company confirms that at the year ended 30 June 2007 and at the last available management reporting date, being 30 November 2007, the
ratio was 14% and 15% respectively. Note that during any given month borrowings can significantly increase and decrease. Based on the
Company’s current tangible assets, the limits on borowing imposed by the Trust Deed and the requirements of the Trustee, up to a total of
$20,000,000 worth of Debentures can be issued at any given time. If the maximum debenture level is reached and based on the cument level of
equity at 30 November 2007, this ratio would remain above 8%.
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Benchmark 2: Liquldity
This benchmark requires issuers of unlisted debentures to undertake an ongoing estimates of cash flows for the next 3 months and to ensure that

they, at all times, have sufficient cash or cash equivalents to meet anticipated cash flow needs over the next 3 months, and to disclose their policy
on balancing the maturity of the Company's assets and the maturing of its liabilities.

The Company does not meet this benchmark.

The Company does nct prepare angeing cash flow estimates in this manner as it prepares an annual cash flow budget for operating expenditure,
which oullines anticipated funding requirements for the Company and anticipated funds to be received through the issue of Debentures, These
estimates are based on historical information and no materal deviation from previous years deposit levels and funding requirements for
Retravision is assumed or anticipated. Accordingly the need for ongoing cash flow forecasting is not considered necessary. The annual cash flow
budget is updated on a monthly basis to take into account the prior months cash movements and to provide management with an up to date
position of future anticipated cash flows for the remainder of the relevant financial year.

Furthermore, as at 30 June 2007, 99% of the Company's assets consisted of both cash at bank and a secured "At Call” loan to Retravision which
is repayable to the Company upon request. The Company believes that it will have available cash flow {from either cash at bank or from
requesting repayments under its “At Call” loan to Retravision} to meet its cash flow needs. The Company has a balanced maturity position, given
that at 30 June 2007 93% of the Debertures issued by the Company were “At Call” which is broadly balanced with the 100% “At Call” nature of
the Company's loan to Retravision. The Company's cash requirements are capped as at any given time the maximum funds that can be drawn by
Retravision is $10,000,000, with operating expenditure being immaterial to the Company's cash flows. Conversely the timing of payout of At Call
Debentures cannot be reliably anticipated. Potential investors’ attention is drawn to paragraph 2 of the “Investment Risks" section on page 6
regarding the "At Call” loan to Retravision.

Benchmark 3: Rollovers

This benchmark requires issuers to clearly disclose their approach to rollovers, including whether the ‘default’ is that debenture investments with
them are automatically rolled-over.

The Company's policy with respect to the rollover of Fixed Term Debentures is to advise Debenture holders in writing, no less than 14 days prior to
the maturity date, of their options with regard to reinvestment or maturity. Where instructions are not received from a Debenture holder prior to the
maturity date, the Fixed Term Debenture is converted into an At Call Debenture. The Company will consider any written request for early
repayment of a Fixed Term Debentures, and if the Company agrees to the early repayment an interest adjustment may apply

The Company meets this benchmark.

Further information on the Company's policy with respect to both the rollover of Fixed Term Debentures, and the early redemption of funds
invested in Debentures, is disclosed on page 7 under the heading “Maturity of Fixed Term Debentures” and page 8 under the heading ‘Repayment
of Fixed Term Debentures Prior to Maturity Date”, both of which are included in the “Details of Issue and Terms of Debentures” section. Note that
as at 30 June 2007 93% of the Debentures on issue were “At Call” which have no fixed maturity date, therefore no rollover or early repayment
policy is in place for these Debentures.

Benchmark 4: Credit ratings
This benchmark requires that the issuer have its debentures rated by a credit rating agency. The credit ratings agency expresses a view on the
likelihood of issuers of debentures in that category experiencing an event of default, based on historical average default rates for similar products.

This provides an external opinion about the debenture, which helps investors decide whether the product is suitable for them and whether it is
appropriately priced.

The Company does not meet this benchmark.

The Company has nof in the past and nor has it for this Prospectus had its Debentures rated by a third party credit rating agency. The reasons for
not having the Debentures rated are as follows:

. the small size of the offer, in comparison to the cost of such a credit rating;

. the anticipated investors of the offer, being subsidiaries of, or parties related to or associated with the parent entity, Retravision; and

. the anticipated use of the funds, with the majority of funds loaned directly to Retravision as an “At Call” loan.

Investors should be aware that an investment in the Company camies with it various risks and should consider the interest rates on offer as
outlined in this Prospectus weighed up against the key risks aitributable to an invesiment in the Company, with the principal specific risk being that
Retravision will not be able to repay the Funds lent to it by the Company, which is likely to result in the Company being unable to repay the

Debentures or pay the interest due on the Debentures. For additional information on these risks please see the “Investment Risks™ section on
page 6 of this Prospectus.
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Benchmark 5: Loan portfolio
This benchmark requires issuers who on-lend funds to disclose the infarmation about their portfolio that is set out below.

As disclosed below under the section titled “Use of Funds”, the primary purpose of issue of these Debentures is to provide Retravision with an "At

Call’ loan to enable it to meet its working capital requirements. The details of the loan as required by the benchmark are detailed below:

. there is one loan to Retravision, with the balance of this lean being $6,152,969 at 30 November 2007,

. the loan is an “At Call” loan, repayable either in part or in full immediately at the request of the Company;

. the bomrower, Retravision, is based in Perth, Western Australia;

. the loan is not and has never been subject to default, and Retravision has always made payments of interest and repayments within the
required timeframe, being monthly;

. as outlined in the section on page 4 titled “Security for Funds lent by the Company”, the loan is fully secured by a charge ranking behind a
charge granted to Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited ("ANZ"), up to it's limit of $10,000,000; and

. the loan to Retravision represents 100% of the funds loaned by the Company as ai the date of this Prospectus.

The Company meets this benchmark.

Potential investors altention is drawn to page 13 of Appendix 1, the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2007, which
discloses the Company's risk management policies, specifically, in dealing with the loan made by the Company, to its parent Retravision.

It is the Company's policy as is the case with the “At Call” loan to Retravision, to ensure that all loans made by the Company are secured to the
maximum amounts that may be borrowed by any party.

Note that as also detailed below under “Use of Funds”, the Company reserves the right to make loans to franchisees of Retravision and to
Retravision and its subsidiaries to enable the redevelopment of stores, and for strategic investments. At this time however, no such loans exist or
are anticipated to be made,

Benchmark 6: Related party transactions
This benchmark requires issuers who on-lend funds to disclose their approach to related party transactions, including how many loans they have

made to related parties and the value of those loans and what assessment and approval process they follow with related party loans (including
whether they are subject to the approval of the Trustee).

As noted in benchmark 5 above, the primary purpose of the Company is to make the loan available to its parent entity Retravision (which is a
related party by virtue of its control of the Company). Accordingly, the only loan cumrently outstanding is a loan to a related party. The approval of
Ihe Trustee is not required or sought for the making of, or the making of advances under, this loan. The key terms of this lean are summarised in
the section “Key Terms of the “At Cali” Loan provided to Retravision” below and the loan is fully secured by a second ranking charge as is the
Company's policy with such loans. For additional details of other related party transactions entered into by the Company, see pages 24 to 26 of
Appendix 1, the Annual Report of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2007.

The Company meets this benchmark.

Types of Debentures offered by the Company under this Prospectus

1. Fixed Term Debentures
Interest rates are fixed for the whole of the term with a number of different interest calculation payment oplions to choose from, which are set
out in the Details of Issue and Terms of Debentures section of this Prospectus and the attached Application Form. The minimum investment
is $500 and terms range from 3 months to 3 years. Investors should telephone the Company on 08 9202 3333 prior to completing an
Application Form to confirm the current term lengths and interest rates for Fixed Term Debentures,

2. At Call Debentures
At Call Debentures allow investors access to their funds on 24 hour call whilst eaming money market interest rates, Investors should
telephone the Company on (08) 9202 3333 prior to compleling an Application Form to confirm the current interest rates applicable to At Call
Debentures. The minimum balance of Debentures able to be held without repayment of all debentures is $500 and deposits and withdrawals
must be in minimum amounts of $500.

.

Use of Funds

The funds received by way of the issue of the Debentures (‘Funds”) will be used predominantly for the purpose of making an "At Call" loan to
Retravision for working capital purposes including taking advantage of discounts offered by trade suppliers for the earty payment of their trade
accounts. Other than the Minimum Application Amount of $500 for. applicants, there is no minimum subscription required under this Prospectus.

The Company may also use these funds for:

*  making Ioans to franchisees of Retravision and Electcom for the purpose of the development of the individual businesses they own including
refurbishments and expansion to larger premises;

making loans to Retravision, Electcom or any subsidiaries or related entities of those companies as the Board determines from time lo time
to enable those entities to make strategic investments in, or acquisitions of, other businesses:

*  making loans to clher persons or entities as the Board determines from time to time; and

=  providing computer leasing facllities to members of Retravision and franchisees of Electcom.

-3.
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Key terms of “At Call” Loan provided to Retravision
The key terms of the “At Call” loan provided to Retravision are:

The loan is an "At Call” loan which Retravision must repay either in part or in full to the Company upon reguest by the Company.

Interest is calculated and charged monthly and payable within 30 days of the end of the month to which it relates.

The loan is secured by a second ranking charge as delailed in the section “Security for Funds lent by the Company™ below.

Retravision must pay the Company interest on the loan at a rate curren! as at 31 December 2007 of 7.95% which is varable based on
movements in the cumrent ANZ Business Bank Swap Rate Average Bid 30 Days.

Security for Funds lent by the Company

Funds lent to Retravision by the Company are secured by a charge in favour of the Company over all the assets and undertakings of Retravision,
excluding its trade debtors, assets of any of its subsidiaries and computer equipment and software (“Retravision Charge™). The Retravision Charge
has been registered with ASIC and ranks second to a mortgage debenture granted by Retravision in favour of ANZ. ANZ's mortgage debenture is
securily for the provisiop of an invoice finance facility by ANZ which enables Retravision to borrow against its debtors up to a total of $18,000,000.
ANZ, by way of its first ranking debenture charge over Retravision, has full recourse over the debtor book. As at 30 November 2007, Retravision
had drawn down $5,886,174 under this invoice finance facility, There are 2 additional fixed and floating charges that have been granted by
Retravision to ANZ which were registered with ASIC after the Retravision Charge and rank after the Retravision Charge in priority.

At present the only financial accommodation from ANZ to Retravigsion, which has been approved by the Company, is the invoice finance facility
referred to in the previous paragraph. Under the Retravision Charge, Retravision must not incur any other debts or menetary obligations with or to
ANZ without the Company's approval, .

Other loans by the Company for approved purposes as outlined in the Use of Funds section above, will be on terms including interest rates and
security considered appropriate by the Company. -

Directors and their Interests

Retravision has appointed the directors of the Company, whose details are set out in the Directory at the end of this Prospectus. Together, the
directors comprise the Board of the Company. A director need not hold any share qualification pursuant to the Constitution of the Company. The
directors may hold Debentures on the same basis as other investors.

The directors or their associates may enjoy the benefit of loans from the Company on the same basis as loans or other forms of financial
accommodation made to other borrowers. As at the date of this Prospectus, no directer of the Company has received a loan from the Company.

Directors are not paid directors’ fees or receive any cother payment from the Company, other than payments made to them in commeoen with ather
Debenture holders as holders of Debentures.

As at 30 June 2007 the directors of the Company held Debentures issued under the Company’s Debenture Progpectus No. 10 totalling $533,100.
The Company advises that these numbers will fluctuate and may have varied at the time of lodging this Prospectus. Furthermore at 30 June
2007, the directors of the Company held a total of 1,500,000 ordinary shares in Retravision.

Trustee and Security for Debentures

The Debentures are gc;vemed by a Trust Deed dated 18 February 1998 between the Company and Perpetua!l Trustees Consclidated Ltd (the
“Trustee™ as the Trustee for the Debenture Holders (the “Trust Deed"). A copy of the Trust Deed, and a copy of the register of Debenture Holders

can be oblained by contacting the Company on 08 9202 3333 or the documents may be inspected during usual business hours at the principal
place of business of the Company.

Role of Trustee

The Trustee holds the benefit of the covenants and obligations of the Company as Trustee for the Debenture Holders. The Trustee’s function is to
represent those debenture holders in dealing with the Company and to monitor, and if necessary, enforce compliance with the Trust Deed. In this
respect the Trustee has a wide discretion to act according to what it considers to be the best interests of Debenture Holders and may, in
appropriate circumstances, waive non-compliance with the Trust Deed. The Trustee is entitled to receive ongoing annual remuneration, payable
quarterly, calculated as 0.035% of the amount of debentures on issue by the Company, plus GST, subject to a minimum annually CPI adjusted
annual remuneration, with the most recent fee charged being for the six months to 30 June 2007 being $11,868 (incl. GST).

The Trustee does not supervise nor have control over the business operations of the Company and it Is not responsible for the success or failure

of those operations, or for any default in the payment of principal and interest on the Debentures. The role of the Trustee is to be Trustee for the
Debenture Holders under the Trust Deed and nothing more.

The Trustee does not make any statement in this Prospectus, and no statement in this Prospectus purports to be based an any statements made
by the Trustee. The Trustee takes no responsibility for this Prospecius and has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus.
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Security for Debentures

The repayment of the Debentures, and interest payable in respect of the Debentures, is secured by a first ranking floating charge contained in the
Trust Deed (the “Charge™. The Charge is in favour of the Trustee over all the tangible and intangible assets (including goodwill, the undertaking,
uncalled capital and called but unpaid capital) whatsoever and wheresoever of the Company. As at the date of lodgement of this Prospectus and
other than immaterial assets located in Scuth Australia, all of the Company's assets are located in Westemn Australia and the Company. The
Charge was registered at ASIC on 26 February 1998 as ASIC Charge Number 632689,

The tangible property that constitutes the security for the Charge is, in the opinion of the Board, sufficient and is reasonably likely to be sufficient
on an ongoing basis to meet the liability for the repayment of all money that is deposited with or lent to the Company in response to this
Prospectus and all other liabilities ranking in priority to, or equally with, that liability that have been or may be incurred.

No charge ranks in priority to the Charge securing the Debentures but, subject to compliance with the borrowing limitations as set out in the Trust

Deed, the Company may create and issue further Debentures ranking equally with Debentures already issued or to be issued pursuant to this
Prospectus.

Obligations of the Company under the Trust Deed
In addition o appointing the Trustee and creating the Charge, the Trust Deed:

« requires the Company to ensure that its total liabilities do not exceed 95% of its total tangible assets;

«  sels out the manner in which the Company is to repay the Debentures;

+ imposes on the Company various obligations including obligations to carry on and conduct its business in a proper and efficient manner and
to keep proper books of account;

*  requires the Company to provide ASIC and the Trustee with yeardy and half yearly accounts and quarterly reports and to comply with other
reporting obligations;

«  prohibits the Company from creating any other charge or securily interest which would rank in priority to, or pari passu with, the Charge
without first abtaining the Trustee's written consent, which is not to be unreasonably withheld if the Trustee is satisfied that the other charge
or security interest will not significantly prejudice holders of Debentures;

«  provides for the Company to pay to the Trustee a fee by way of remuneration for its services as Trustee,

+  requires the Company to establish a register of Debenture Holders;

«  provides that Debenture holders representing not less than 10% of the nominal value of the Debentures may request by notice in writing
delivered to the Company's registered office that a meeting of Debenture Holders be convened within 30 days of that notice to consider the
accounts and balance sheet of the Company that were laid before the last preceding annual general meeting of the Company and to give the
Trustee directions in relation to the exercise of the Trustee's powers; and

»  provides that a quorum for 2 meeting of Debenture holders is a minimum of 10 Debenture holders who must hold at least 15% in nominal
value of the Debentures, as recorded in the Company's register 48 hours prior to the time appeinted for the meeting..

The Trust Deed also provides that the following events constitute events of default entitling the Trustee to enforce the Charge:

L)

the Company failing to pay the principal or interest due in respect of any Debenture on the day that it becomes due and payable;

an application being made to a court for the appaintment of a liquidator or official manager of the Company;

the Company ceases to carry on business;

either a receiver or a receiver and manager is appointed in respect of, or a mortgagee takes possession or enforces its mortgage against the

Company's assets;

«  any unsecured financial accommeodation afforded to the Company becomes due and payable and the Company fails to make payment within
30 days after demand in writing for the payment has been made;

*  any distress or execution in excess of $50,000 is levied or enforced upon or against the undertaking property or assets of the Company and
is not satisfied within 30 days or such longer period as the Trustee may allow;

¢+ the Company becomes unable to pay its debts as they fall due or, without the consent of the Trustea, enters into any arrangement or
composition with its creditors;

« the Company, without the consent of the Trustee, reduces its capital;

« the Company contravenes its obligations to.Debenture holders under the Trustee or fails or neglects to carry ou! its duties and the Trustee is
of the reasonable opinion that such contravention, failure or neglect is prejudicial to, or adversely affects, those Debenture holders and the
Company does not rectify the matter within such period specified by the Trustee;

= the Company sells or parts with possession of the whole or a major part of its undertaking without the prior consent of the Trustee where the
Trustee has not received a certificate signed by 2 directors of the Company stating that the sale or parting with possession is commercially
?_esirable. not prejudicial or adverse to the interests of Debenture holders and would not result in a breach of the borrowing limits under the

rust Deed;

+ the Company, within 30 days of a demand being made by the Trustee, fails to carry out or comply in a material respect with any undertaking
given to, or any condition imposed in respect of any consent given, or the exercise of any power or discretion by, the Trustee pursuant to the

rust Deed; or

* the Company creates, allows to subsist or purports or attempts to create any encumbrance contrary to the terms of the Trust Deed.

If an event of defaull occurs, the Trustee may take actions to enforce its security including to take possession of and deal with the Company's
assets and carry on the Company's business or appoint a received over the property of the Company.

The Company can issue further Debentures on such conditions anid at such times as the Company may determine from time to time and all
Debentures whenever‘ issued on whatever price and terms rank equally. The Company may only issue Debentures or otherwise borrow or incur

-5.
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liabilities within the limits prescribed by the Trust Deed. The Trust Deed contains a covenant by the Company that it will ensure that the total
liabilities of the Company do not exceed 95% of the Company's total tangible assets. As per unaudited management accounts, as at 30
November 2007, that percentage was 85%. The Company wilt only Issue such number of Debentures that do not cause it to exceed these limits.

Amendment of the Trust Deed

The terms of the Trust Deed may be amended by agreement between the Trustee and the Company. Such an amendment may be made if in the
opinion of the Trustee the amendment is not likely to be materially prejudicial to the interests of Debenture Holders.

Financial Information

The complete Annual Reports as issued 1o shareholders for the Company and Retravision and the Controlled Entities referred to in those reports
for the year ended 30 June 2007 are atlached as Appendices 1 and 2 respectively. Potential investors should review these Annual Reports to
ascertain the financial position of the Company ang Retravision prior to investing in Debentures under this Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company are, after having made due enquiry, not aware of any matter or circumstance, not otherwise dealt with in the
financial statements, that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs
of the Company, Retravision and its Controlled Entities, that has arisen during the period from 30 June 2007 to the date of this Prospectus.

Investment Risks

An investment in Debentures camies with it risks, both specific to the Company and of a nature which are typical of those bome by entities in the
financial sector, which may affect the ability of the Company to repay the Debentures or pay the interest due on the Debentures.

The principal specific risk is that Retravision will not be able to repay the Funds lent to it by the Company, which is likely to result in the Company
being unable to repay the Debentures or pay the interest due on the Debentures.

Retravision is a trading entity and its capacity to repay amounts advanced will be affected by its continued financial performance and position. If
the funds lent to Retravision are used to finance loans to store owners, the continued success of the particular store will be critical to repayment of
those loans. In assessing the risks of an investment in the Debentures, prospective investors should carefully consider Retravision's Annual
Report for the year ended 30 June 2007, with particular attention drawn 1o the working capital deficiency contained in Note 31 Related Party
Disclosures on page 52 of that Annual Reporl. Retravision’s Annual Report is attached to this Prospectus in Appendix 2. While noting that this list
of risks is not exhaustive, the Company considers thal the following are key risk factors that may affect the financial performance andfor financial
performance of Retravision, which in turn may affect its ability to repay the Funds lent to It by the Company:

*  Retravision is likely to need to draw on its financial facilities with ANZ should the Company request that Retravision repay a substantial
portion or all of the Funds lent by the Company. There is a risk that Retravision's financial facilities with ANZ may be terminated or become
unavailable (due 1o the default by Retravision or for other reasons) and Retravision is unable to source alternate funding sources. If this risk
eventuates, Retravision may be unable to repay all or part of the Funds lent by the Company.

«  The financial performance of Refravision is dependent upon the continuation of demand for electrical products by consumers in Westem
Australia and to a lesser extent South Australia and the Northem Temitory. Should this demand materially deteriorate, Retravision's financial
performance, and its ability to repay Funds lent to it by the Company, may be adversely affected. General economic conditions in Australia
and the world may also affect the demand for electrical products. .

« There is a risk that Retravision's financial performance may be adversely affected by increased competition from new and existing
competitors.

In assessing the risks of an investment in the Debientures, prospective investors should also carefully consider the Company's Annual Report for
the year ended 30 June 2007, which is atiached to this Prospectus in Appendix 1.

Taxation

The Australian tax faws are complex and the following is not intended to be a complete statement of the possible tax implications for investers in
Debentures.

Interest paid on Debentures will generally be included in assessable income in the income year it is paid. However, investors who subscribe for
debentures with terms longer than 12 months with interest to be paid only on the Maturity Date should be aware that they are required by Division
16E of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 to include the accruing interest income in their annual tax retums. You should seek independent
professional advice with respect to the tax consequences applicable to your individual circumstances before investing as your individual

circumstances may affect the taxation Implications of an investment in Debentures. It is your responsibility to be satisfied as to the particular
taxation treatment that applies to each investment. .

Details of Issue and Terms of Debentures
Ranking of Debentures

Debentures issued under this Prospectus will rank equally with all other Debentures on issue in the Company.

-6-




Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd - Debenture Prospectus No. 11

Processing of Applications

The Company will, within 2 months after the acceptance of an investment to which this Prospectus relates, issue to the investor a certificate
acknowledging the indebtedness of the Company in respect of that investment.

Maturity of Fixed Term Debentures

The Company will send holders of Fixed Term Debentures an advice in writing, no less than 14 days prior to the maturity date, of approaching
maturity of their Fixed Term Debentures and of their options with regard to reinvestment or maturity. Investors may request that their Fixed Term
Debentures be repaid on their Maturity Date by way of the Debenture Withdrawal Form. If the Company does not receive a Debenture Withdrawal
Farm by the Maturity Date, the Company wifl convert the Fixed Term Debentures to At Call Debentures.

Interest Rates

Interest rates for Debentures will be the rate determined by the Board from time to time based on prevailing market conditions at the time that the
Company accepts the application. The interest rates currently applicable at the dale of this Prospectus are set out in the Interest Rate Card
accompanying and forming part of this Prospectus. Applicants should telephone the Company on (08) 9202 3333 to confirm the currency of any
Application Form, interest rate, and/or term prior to completing an Application Form. Applicants should then insert the applicable interest rate on
their Application Form next to their chosen investment option. Each year the Company will forward to each Debenture Holder a statement of
interest earned for taxation purposes.

For Fixed Term Debentures, following acceptance of your application by the Company, the interest rate applicable ta your Debentures will remain
unchanged throughout their term. The interest rate applicable to At Call Debentures is variable and the Company will natify holders of At Call
Debentures of changes to the applicable interest rate. Applicants can find out current term lengths and interest rates by telephoning the Company
on {08) 9202 3333. The applicable terms and interest rates are also found in the weekly e-mail despatched to Retravision dealers and Electcom
franchisees. .

The Company reserves the right at any time, during the term of this Prospectus, to vary the interest rates and/or term lengths offered. For Fixed
Term Debentures, such variation will apply only to applications lodged on or after the date of variation.

If the applicable interest rate has changed from that set out in your Application Form or you send us an application form that does not specify the
interest rate, the Company will either refund your application money to you or issue the Debentures at the then cument interest rate and notify you
of the cument interest rate and give you 1 month to withdraw your application and be repaid your application money (including interest).

If Fixed Term Debentures are not repaid at the maturity date by the Company {other than by reason of you not satisfying the requirements for
repayment), the Company will convert the Fixed Term Debentures to At Call Debentures and adjust the interest rate to the current “at call” rate.
Interest will then accrue until repayment or redemplion is actually made.

Calculation of Interest

Interest will be calculated on a daily basis from the date of acceptance of your application to the next interest payment date following acceptance.
Depending on the type and term of Debenture you apply for, interest will be paid in one of the following manners,

1. Monthiy interest
Interest will be paid on the last day of every month and on repayment of the Debenture.
2. Quarterly Interest
Interest will be paid on the last day of March, June, September and December and on repayment of the Debenture.
3. Annual Interest
Interest will be paid annually on the last day of the month of investment each year and on repayment of the Debenture.
4, Compound Annual interest
Interest will be credited and compounded annually then paid on repayment of the Debenture. This means that interest is calculated on
both the original principal as well as the interest that has accrued each year during the period of the investment.

Interest Payment Options

The Application for Debenture form allows you to select any of the following interest payment options,

1. Direct Deposit

Your interest payments will be made direct to your account al a bank, building society or another deposit taking institution specified by you.
Where possible these payments will be transferred electronically or sent direct to the head office of the nominated institution. If you select
the direct deposit option, the following conditions apply:

(a) The Company will not issue separate interest lodgement notices to investors,

{b) The Company cannot accept responsibility for detays caused in the transfer or the processing of the payment by the receiving
institutions. ‘

2. Bycheque .
A cheque will be posted to the postal address specified on your Application Form.
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3. Compounded

Interest will be credited and accumulated to your account on the last day of an interest payment peried. You can convert from compound

interest to monthly, quarterly or annual payments, or vice versa, by giving the Company not less than two weeks written notice of your desire
to convert.

Transfarability of Debentures

Subject to the Corporations Act 2001 and the Trust Deed, holders of Debentures may only transfer Debentures with the prior consent of the
Company. '

Duties and Taxes

The Company reserves the right to withhald tax and other taxation deductions where required to do so under any applicable taxation laws and to
recoup any government duties or taxes (including GST) incurred in connection with any investment under this Prospectus.

Repayment of Fixed Term Debentures Prior to Maturity Date

Prior to a Debenture's Maturity Date, the Company will consider any written request for repayment of all or part of an investor's holding of Fixed
Term Debentures. If the Company agrees to the early repayment an interest adjustment may apply. Repayment without adjustment is only made
to the Executors or Administrators of deceased estates or primary producers in accordance with administrative or legislative requirements,
Superannuation or provident funds, upon one month's written notice, may withdraw up to 10% of their investment annually without adjustment.
Any request for earty withdrawat should be communicated to the Company on the Debenture Withdrawal Form attached to this Prospectus.

Additional Information
Congents

PricewaterhouseCoopers has given its consent (which has not been withdrawn as at the date of this Prospectus) to the issue of this Prospectus
with PricewaterhouseCoopers being named as auditors to the Company in the Directory and 1o the inclusion of the audited financial statements of
the Company and Retravision for the year ended 30 June 2007, including the Independent Audit Reports, in the form and context in which those
financial statements are included. PricewaterhouseCoopers has not been involved in the preparation of any part of the Prospectus and has not
authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus.”

Deacons has given its consent (which has not been withdrawn as at the date of this Prospectus) to the issue of this Prospectus with the inclusion
to references to Deacons as solicitors of the Company in the Directory of this Prospectus and in the form and context in which these references
are included. Deacons has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus. Deacons expressly disclaims and takes no responsibility for any
other part of this Prospecius. It makes no statement in the Prospectus and has not authorised or caused the issue of it.

The Trustee has not been involved in the preparation of any part of this Prospectus and makes no promise that money invested will eam income
or capital gain, or be repaid. The Trustee expressly disclaims and takes no responsibility for any part of this Prospectus. It makes no statement in
the Prospectus and has not authorised or caused the issue of it.

Remunaration and Related Party Disclosures

No director or proposed director of the Company and no expert of a firm of which such an expert is a partner has any interest in the promotion of,
or in any property proposed to be acquired, by the Company.

Other than as disclosed in Notes 18, 19 and 20 of the Financial Statements of the Company in Appendix 1, no amounts have been paid or agreed
to be paid in cash or shares or otherwise to any key member of management, any director or proposed director of the Company or to a firm of

which he is a partner either to induce him to become, or to qualify him as, a director or otherwise for services rendered by him or his firm in
connection with the promotion or formation of the Company.

No amounts have been or agreed to be paid in cash or shares or ctherwise to any expert or to a firm of which such an expert is a partner, for
services rendered by him or his firmm in connection with the promotion or formation of the Company, save that PricewaterhouseCoopers and
Deacons are to be paid their usual professional fees in connection with this Prospectus, being the GST exclusive sums of $2,750 and $6,000
respectively. PricewaterhouseCoopers and Deacons provided services 1o the Company in respect of its Debenture Prospectus No.10 and were
paid the GST exclusive sums of $5,500 and $5,000 respectively for those services.

In accordance with clause 11.4(a) of the Trust Deed, the Trustee is entitled to charge a fee in connection with this Prospectus. It is estimated that
the Trustee's fee will be $900 plus GST, in addition to the amounts the Trustee receives as remuneration, which is outlined in the Role of Trustee

section of this Prospectus. There was no Trustee fee in respect of the Company's Debenture Prospectus No.10 as it formed part of the
remuneration received in the Role of Trustee for that year.

Prospects

The Company expects to continue to trade profitably for the year ending 30 June 2008 and expects that it will meet all interest and principal
payments as they fall due,
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Statement of Directors

Each Director of the Company has consented to the lodgement of the Prospectus with ASIC and has not withdrawn that consent prior to
lodgement.

This Prospectus was signed on behalf of the flirectors of the Company by:
WA HARRIES

Chairman
Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd
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Paid
Monthly

Rate p.a. Min
3500

on application

6.45%
6.55%
6.65%
6.75%
6.75%

6.75%

I nteres't

DEBENTURE
PROSPECTUSNo. 11
R ates
Paid Pald Compounded
Quarterly Annuall Annually
rate p.a. y rate p.a.
Min $500 rate p.a. Min §500
B Min $500 _
6.50% - -
6.60% - -
6.70% - -
6.80% 7.00% -
6.80% 7.00% 7.00%
6.80% 7.00% 7.00%

» The interest rates set out on this interest rate card may
not be current at the time your application is made.
Please check with the Company for the current rates
before completing the application. Telephone 08 9202

3333.

_ * Interest rates are also found in the e-mail despatched to
. Retravision Dealers and Electcom Lid Franchisees.

- «Interest Rates are effective frorn 4 February 2008.




Instructions on How to Invest

1. Please complete the Application Form accompanying and forming part of the Prospectus. Please note the minimum application amount
of $500 per application and insert the amount you want to invest and the frequency of your interest payments for the term of your
investment.

2. Applicants are also required to insert the interest rate applicable to their investment on the Application Form. The interest rates currently

applicable at the date of this Prospectus are set out in the Interest Rate Card accompanying and forming part of this Prospectus.
However, applicants should telephone the Company on (08) 9202 3333 to confirm the interest rate and insert the confirmed amount on
the Application Form,

3 Deposits can be made as follows: .
(a) Attach a Not Negotiable cheque made payable to Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd (Cash will not be accepted).

(b) By electronic transfer to the Company’s bank account provided that written confirmation has been lodged with the Company on
the same day:

Account Name: Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd
BSB: 016 002
Account No.: 8372 40161

4, Deliver or post your Application Form and cheque to:

Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd
PO Box 173, Osborne Park WA 6917
{or 2 Gould Street, Herdsman WA 6017)

Alternatively you may fax your Application Form to 08 9202 3355.

How to Sign Your Application

Individual - by you personally or
- by your authorised attorney(s), please attach the Power of Attorney for noting and return unless it has already been noted by
the Comeany. .
Partnership - by all applicants.
Joint - by all applicants (joint tenancy is presumed unless the Company is notified otherwise, in writing, by all parties).
Company - in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 andfar

- by an authorised officer(s) of the company showing name and title.

Trusts - applications are to be made in the name of the trustee(s) and signed by the trustee(s) of superannuation, provident and
other trust funds, clubs and other organisations.

Tax File Number Notification

Our request for your Tax File Number ("TFN") is authorised by tax laws which also strictly regulate its use and disclosure. You may choose not to
quote your TFN in which case tax may be taken out of your interest.

Joint investments - if possible please provide details of only two investors who have TFN's rather than investors who are exempt.
Trust investments — provide the trust TFN if there is one. Otherwise please provide the trustee's TFN or exemption.

Exemptions:

If you propose to claim a TFN exemption, please provide full detalls of your reason for exemption, eg children under the age of 16 who are eaming
less than 3420 p.a. (or $772 p.a. including the low income tax offset), are to provide their year of birth (a TFN is required by 31 December in the
year they turn 16, or tax may be withheld); pensioners are to provide the full name of their pension ("Age, Invalid...™); organisations not required to
Iodge tax returns are to state the reason for their exemption.

If you have any queries about your TFN or exemption eligibility, please telephone the Company or the Austratian Taxation Office.

Privacy

The Application Forms require you to provide to us information about you that Is personal information for the purposes of the Privacy Act 1988.
The information that we seek is necessary to enable us to process your Application and, if your Application is accepted, issue debentures to you
and pay you interest. This is why we obtain this information. We do nét disclose your personal details to anyone else. You have the right to

access the information we hold about you. H you do not provide us with all the information we seek we may not be able to process the Application
or issue debentures to you. .

Further Information

It you have any queries in relation to this Prospectus, please either telephone the Company on 08 9202 3333 or cali at our office at 2 Gould Street,
Herdsman, WA,




Retrawiicsblr':'!:;rggrlff 49(‘}N A Ltd APPLICATION FOR DEBENTURE

Debenture Prospectus No. 11 Fax form to (08) 9202 3355

Ihwe hereby apply for Debentures of Retravision Finance (WA} Lid as detailed below under the terms and conditions set out in Prospectus No, 11
dated 4 February 2008. l/we understand that no such securities will be allotted or issued after 28 February 2009 and that applications must be

made on this form accompanying and forming part of the Prospectus. |/we acknowledge that the Company reserves the right to vary interest
rates and terms prior to issue. . .

Investor Details (Piease use block letters)

INVESTOR 1 Company Name ' A.BN. Store No.
Mrs/Miss/Ms/Mr/Dr {Surname) {Given Name)
Postal Address:
State: Post Code: Telephone No:

INVESTOR 2 Company Name A.B.N. Store No.
Mrs/Miss/Ms/Mr/Dr (Surname)' {Given Name)
Postal Address;
State: Post Code: Telephone No:

Investment Instructions

Before completing this application form, you should check with the Company to make sure interest rates are current. Telephone (08) 9202 3333
Interest rates are also found in the weekly e-mail despatched to Retravision Dealers and Electcom Franchisees. You must inserl the amount you
wish to invest and the applicable interest rate in the box corresponding to your chosen investment option below.

interest Compounded/ | Interest Compounded/ Interest Compounded/ interest Compounded
TERM . Payabile Monthly . Payable Quarterly Payable Annually Annually
(Min $500) (Min $500) {Min $500} (Min $500)

AT CALL DEBENTURES
24 hr call $ % $ % $ % $ %
FIXED TERM DEBENTURES
3 months § % $ %
6 months $ % s %
§ months $ % 3 %
1 yoar $ % 5 % 5 %
2 years $ % 3 % $ % $ %
3years $ % $ % L % $ %

* Obtain the current rate from the Company.

Interest Instructions
(Please indicate your account details for direct deposit of inferest payments, otherwise a cheque will be posted to the above addrass)

Name of Bank, Building Society or other institution;

Account Name:

Full Address: Postcode:
Bank BS8: A Account No:
By signing this application Iorm I/we acknowledge that lfiwe have read the Prospectus to which this application relates.
INVESTOR 1- Signature INVESTOR 2- Signature Dt
ate

If signed under Power of Attomey, the donee of such Power of Attorney states that no notice of revocation has been received.
NOTE: - Joint applications are to be signed by all investors.

Tax File Number Notification - Optionat (see accompanying information). Please mark what type of investment this is in the box.

Investment Type: | =Individual J=Joint T=Trust P =Parnership C= Company
Tax File Number Specify Exemption Claimed Exemption for a child under the age of
(eg full pansion name) 16 eaming less than $420 p.a. or $772
p.a. including low income tax offset
(Please provide date of birth)

INVESTOR1 o T Fooo
INVESTOR 2 ST AT ., oo, T

I/We have previously quoted my/our tax file number/s or exemption information to the Company and now authorise such information to
be applied to this investment. (Please tick to authorise).




Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd DEBENTURE WITHDRAWAL FORM
A.B.N. 77 079 440 494

Debenture Prospectus No. 11 Fax form to (08) 9202 3355

Investor Details (Piease use block letters)

INVESTOR 1 Company name A.B.N. Store No.
Mrs/Miss/Ms/Mr/Dr (Surname) ' {Given Name)
Postal Address:
State: ‘ Post Code: ‘ Telephone No:
INVESTOR 2
Company name A.B.N, Store No.
Mrs/Miss/Ms/Mr/Dr (Surname) (Given Name}
Postal Address:
State: ' Post Code: Telephone No:

Withdrawal Instructions:

Please write the debenture number and the amount you wish to withdraw in the appropriate columns. Before completing this application form,
you should check with the Company to make sure balances are current by telephoning (08} 5202 3333. Please note payments can only be
issued to such other person as the Debenture Holder{s) direct in writing.

TERM DEBENTURE NUMBER AMOUNT
24 hr call

3 months

6 months

9 months

1 year

2 yoars

" s (s (8 |» |Gn (b

3 years

(Please indicate your account details for direct deposit of payments, otherwise a cheque will be posted to the above address)

Name of Bank, Building Society or other institution:

Account name:

Full Address: Postcode:

Bank BSB: Account No:

INVESTOR 1- Signature * INVESTOR 2- Signature

Date

If signed under Power of Attomey, the donee of such Power of Attorney states that no notice of revocation has been received.

NOTE: - Withdrawals of joint investments are to be signed by all investars.
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Directory

Registered Office

2 Gould Street, Herdsman
Perth, Westem Australia, 6017

Phone: 08 9202 3333
Facsimile: 08 9202 3355

Postal Address: PO Box 173
Osbome Park, Western Australia, 6817

Principal Place of Business

2 Gould Street, Herdsman
Perth, Western Australia, 6017

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

QV1 Building

250 St Georges Terrace
Perth, Western Australia, 6000

Solicitors

Deacons

BankWest Tower

108 St Georges Terrace

Perth, Westem Australia, 6000

Trustee for Debenture Holders

Perpetual Trustees Consolidated Limited
Level 12

123 Pitt Street

Sydney, New South Wales, 2000

Key Management Personnel
Mr PLC Holt (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Holt joined the Group in February 2005 and is Chief Executive
Officer of all Group Entities. Mr Holt is a member of the Finance
and Operations Group. Prior to working with the Group he held a
number of senior positions in large multinationals which operated
in the printing and distribution industry.

Mr R George (Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer)

Mr George is a member of the institute of Chartered Accountants
and is an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered
Company Secretaries. He joined the Group in June 1999 and
has been Company Secretary since January 2000. He is
Company Secretary of all Group Entities and also holds the role
of Chief Financial Officer. Mr George is a member of the Finance
and Operations Group. Prior {0 working with the Group he held
roles with a venture capital company and Price Waterhouse.

/Prospectus No 11 {Einal)

The Directors of the Company are:

Mr WA Harries (Chairman}
Company director and business proprietor. Chairman of
Retravision (WA) Ltd, Elecicom Lid and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd.

Mr D Dorsett-Lynn (Deputy Chairman)
Company director, Deputy Chairman of Retravision (WA) Ltd,
Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd

Mr G Groppoli

Company director and a director of Retravision (WA) Ltd,
Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D, Ltd. Also a director of
Automotive Holdings Group Lid.

Mr G.J Tomich
Company director and business proprietor. A director of
Retravision (WA) 1td, Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd.

Mr RG Maidment
Company director and business proprietor. A director of
Retravision (WA) Ltd, Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd.

For further information regarding the experience and
qualifications of the directors, potential investors’ attention is
drawn to the Directors’ reports contained in Appendix 1 and 2
attached.
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Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd
Annual Report
for year ended 30 June 2007
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This financial report covers Retravision Financa (WA) Lid as an

individual entity. The financial report is presented In Australian
currency.

Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd Is a company limited by shares,
Incorperated and domiciled In Austratia.

A description of the nature of the entity's operations and its
principal activities is included In the review of operations on
pages 1 and 2 of the Directors' Report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on
26 September 2007. The company has the power to amend and
reissue the financial report.




Directors’ Report

Your directors present their report on Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2007,

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd during the whole of the financial year and up to the date
of this report: .

W A Harrles

O Dorsett-Lynn
G Groppoli

G J Tomich

R G Maidment

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS & COMPANY SECRETARY

Director qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

LY
W A Harrles Mr Harries has had over thirty years of electrical retall exparience. He has he!d his positon on the Board
since incorporation In September 1897 and was appointed Deputy Chalrman in 1598 and Chairman in
November 2001. He holds the role of National Chairman, in his capacity as a director of Retravision Pty
Ltd, and has held this role since October 2005. He currently holds a directorship in Natchez Nominees
Pty Ltd, which operates Retravision stores in Kalamunda and Ammadale. He is also a director of
Retravision (WA) Ltd, Electcom Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd and Retravision Pty Ltd.

D Dorsett-Lynn Mr Dorsett-Lynn was appointed a director of the company In November 1999 and Deputy Chatman in
November 2003. He is Managing Director for Dorsett Retail Pty Ltd which operates Retravision storas In
Margaret River, Bunbury and O'Connor, as well as operating a Fridge & Washer City store and a West
Coast Hi Fl store both situated in Bunbury. In addition he sits on the Boards as Deputy Chalrman of

Retravision (WA} Ltd, Electcorn Lid and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd. He is also a director of Retravision Pty
Ltd.

G Groppoli Mr Groppoli holds the degrees Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Jurisprudence from the
University of Westem Australia. He is Managing Director of Milners Pty Ltd and is a consultant to a Perth
law firm. He was appointsd to the Board of the company in June 1999, He also holds diractorships in
Retravision (WA) Lid, Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd.

G J Tomich Mr Tomich was appointed a director of the company in November 2003. He is also a director of Jetgold
Pty Ltd, operating a Retravision store in Rockingham and Kantom Pty Lid that operates a Ratravision
store in Kalgoortie. Mr Tomich has been actively involved in the retall Industry since 1984. In addition he
sits on the Boards of Retravision (WA} Ltd, Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.AD. Lid.

R G Maidment Mr Maidment was appointed a director of the company in Novernber 2005. He Is also a director of Orcas
Pty Lid, operating a Retravision store in Wiiletton. Mr Maidment has been actively involved in the

electrical retall Industry since 1980. In addition he sits on the Boards of Retravision (WA} Ltd, Elecicom
Ltd and Retravision D.A.D, Ltd.

Company Secratary qualifications, experience and spacial responsibilities

R George Mr George is a Charterad Accountant and joined the Retravision (WA) Ltd In June 1999 and has been
Company Secretary since January 2000. He is also Company Secretary of all subsidiaries of Retravision
(WA) Ltd. including Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, and also holds tha role of Chief Financial Officer.

THE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

The principal continuing activity of the Company during the course of the financial year was to operate as a finance company to
receive deposits from membars/dealers of the Retravision (WA) Ltd Group of Companies, their officers, employees, associates
or families and officers or employees of the Retravision (WA) Ltd Group or such other persons as the directors determine from
lime to time. These funds are made available to Retravision (WA) Ltd as a loan for working capital purposes. The company
has expanded its use of depositors’ funds to offer all dealers purchasing through Retravision (WA) Lid, an operating lsase

facility for the Retravision Retail Managsment System and assoclaled hardware, as well as other electronic plant and
equipment,




Directors’ Report

TRADING RESULTS

The net profi of the Company for the year was $63,836 (2006: $85,978) after deducting income tax expense of $42,367 (2006:
$54,274).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has besn daclared or pald during the financial year {2006: $Nil). The directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividend, :

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2007, the Company recorded a profit before income tax of $108,203 (2006: $140,252).
Revenue of $951,409 (2006: $770,019) has been eamed for the year.

The Trust Deed condition that the Company's llabilities are not to exceed 95% of Its tangible assets has been met at all times
during the year.

The company has five operating leases at year end for dealers purchasing through Retravision (WA) Ltd, who have taken up
the offer to lease the Retravision Retail Managemant System and other electronic plant and equipment

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

There wera no significant changes In the state of affalrs of the Company that accurred during the finandial year not otherwise
disclosed in this raport.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Since the end of the financial year the diractors are not aware of any matter or circumstance, not otherwise dealt with in the
report to the financial statements, that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the

results of those operations, or the state of affalrs of the Company in financial years subsequent to the financial year ended 30
June 2007,

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

In the opinion of the directors, likely developmants in the operations of the Company known at the date of this repert have been
covered withit the report, Further Information as to llkely deveicpments in the oparations of the Company, including the

expectad results of those operations in subsequent financial years could, in the opinion of the directors, prejudice the interests
of the Company and have therefora not been included in this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIdNS

The company s not subject to any significant anvirenmental regutations.




Directors’ Report

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors’ meetings held during the financial year and the number of meetings attended by each diractor are:

Number of Meetings
* . 12
Number of meetings attendad by:
W A Harries 12
D Dorsett-Lynn ) 1
G Groppoli . . L]
G J Tomich 9
R G Maidment . 1
INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

Curing the financial year the parent entity, Ratravision (WA) Ltd, paid a premium of $20,538 {2006: $24,441) to insure the
directors and secretary of the parent entity and lts subsidiaries,

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as officers of the entilies in the consolidated sntity, and any other payments arising from
liabilities incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabilities that arise from
conduct invalving a wiltul breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to
gain advantage for themselves or somecne else or to cause detriment ta the company. ltis not possible to apportion the
premlum between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other liahilities.

INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

Retravision (WA) Ltd, the parent entity, has entared Into agreements to Indemnify cartain officers of the company and related
body corporates.
LY

The officers of the company covered by the agreemant include: W A Harries, D Dorsett-Lynn, G Groppoli, G J Tomich, RG
Maidment, P L C Holt and R George. .

The Indemnity reletes to any liability:

(a) to a third party (othar than Retravision (WA) Ltd or & related body corporate} unless the liability arises out of conduct
involving a lack of good faith; and

(b} for costs and expenses incurred in successfully defending civit o criminal proceedings or In connection with an
application, in relation to such proceedings. In which relief is granted under the Corporations Act 2001.

No Hablity has arisen under these indemnities as of the date of this repont,

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in offica in accordance with Section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

A copy of the auditors’ indapendence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on
page 4.

This report is made in aceordanca with a resolution of the directors,

%ZJLLy

W A Harries (Chairman)
Dated this 27st day of Saptamber 2007
Parth, Western Australia
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of' Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2007, |
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd.

Pierre Dreyer Perth

Partner 21 September 2007
PricewaterhouseCoopers
4

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation




Income Statement FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Notes
2008
$
Interest Income 4 : 742,886
interest Expense 4 %:kjﬁ% B (483,537)
NET INTEREST INCOME Wieilaaeedh-  2sep
Other Income 5 :
Other Expenses ' 6
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7
PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX 16

[

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Balance Sheet as at 30 JUNE 2007

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Property, plant & equipment
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Deferred tax tiabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Contributed equity
Retainaed profits

TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

12
13
14

15
16

2,468,442
4,997,004
21,870

| 7.488,316

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.




Statement of Changes in Equity For THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

|
| TOTAL EQUITY AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
| FINANCIAL YEAR

|

|

Profit for the year (total recognised income and
expense for the year)

. 2008-

$

933,244

85,078

TOTAL EQUITY AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR attributable to the member
of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd

-+ 1,019,222

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Cash Flow Statement FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

"Notes

L

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)
Payments to suppliers {inclusive of GST) -

28.‘561
(124,778)

Interest recaived ]
interest and other costs of finance paid
Income taxes paid
NET CASH INFLOWS FROM QOPERATING
ACTIVITIES 20 (a)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments {or property, plant & equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, planit & equipment
Loans o retated parties (immediate parent entity)

NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

(95,915)
729,485
(59.277)

- {8,172)

565,121

o (9.590)
;3. e
+; (44,635,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from issues of and payments for
maturing debentures

NET CASH INFLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD
Cash at the bgginning of the financial year
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIA\L YEAR 20 (b)

The above cash flow statement should be read In conjfunction with the accompanying notes,




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopled in the preparation of the financial report are set out befow. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australlan Accounting Standards, other

authoritative pronguncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent !ssues Group Interpretations and the
Corporations Act 2001.

Application of AASB 130 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Simllar Financlal Institutions
As Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd is primarily a finance company, these financial statements are prepared In accordance with
AASB 130 Disclosures in the Financiel Statementis of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions.

AASB 130 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Simitar Financial Institutions requires that the income
statement groups income and expenses by nature and discloses the amounts of the prindpal types of income and expenses,
which for Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd Is interest Income and interest expenditure. 1 also requires that an analysls of Interest
income and expense should be disclosed showing for each interest bearing asset and interest bearing liability the average
balance, the amount of income or expense and the average interest rate.

AASB 130 Disclosuras in the Financial Statemonts of Banks and Similar Financial institutions requires that the balance sheset

groups assets and liabiliies by nature and lists thern in an order that reflects their refative Iquidity and preciudes them from
being separated Into current and non current items.

Compliance with IFRS

Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to intemational Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS).
Compllance with AIFRS ensures that the-financial statements and notes of Retravision Financa (WA) Ltd comply with
Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historica! cost convention,

Crtical accounting gstimates

The preparation of financia! statements In conformity with AIFRS requires the use of cartain aitical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. On
preparation of this financial report there were no areas which require a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates were signlficant to the financial statements, therefore separate disclosure of thase estimates
Is not required.

{b) Segment reporting

A business segment Is a group of assets and oparations engaged in providing products or sarvices that are subject to fsks and
retums that are different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged In providing products or

sarvicas within a particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

(c) Revenue recognition

Ravenue |s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of
returns, trade allowances, rabates and amounts coliected on behalf of third parties.

Retravision Financa (WA) Ltd recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, 1\ is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of Retraviston Finance (WA) Ltd's
acliviles as described below. The amount of revenus is not considerad to be reflably measurable untll all contingencies
relating to the sale have besan resolved. Retravision Finance (WA) Lid bases Its astimates on historical results, taking into
considaration the type of customer, the type of fransaction and tha specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue Is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

()] Lease income

Lease income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term when recelvable. The assets
subject to these leases are recorded as property, plant & equipment {rental assets) (note 23).

{ii} Interast income '
lnterest incoma is recognised on a time proportlon basis using the effactive intarest method.




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JuNE 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{d) Income tax

The income lax expense or revenue for the period Is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the

current Australian tax rate adjusied by changes in deferred tax assels and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses. :

Deferred income tax Is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred Income tax Is not accounted
for If it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabliity in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacled by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income ax liabllity Is settlad.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax |losses only If it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offaet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the current tax assets and
liabllities and when the deferred tax balances relata to the same taxatlon authority. Curment tax assets and tax liabliitles are

offset where the enlity has a legally enforceable right to offset and Intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously,

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

Tax consofidstion legistation

Retravision (WA) Ltd and its whally-owned subsidiaries, including Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, have implemented the tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2004,

The head entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd, and the controlled enfities In the tax consolidated group, induding Retravision Finance
(WA) Ltd, continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each
antity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand alone taxpayer In its own right.

In addition to Its own currant and deferred tax amounts, Ratravision (WA) Lid, alsc recognises the current liabliities (or assets)
and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from contralled entities In the tax
consolidated group, including Retravision Finance (WA) Lid.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolldated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the group. Details about the tax funding agreement are disclosad in note 7.

Any differenca between the amounts assumed and amounts recaivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities,

(e} Impairment of assets

Goodwill and Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful lifo are not subject to amortisation and are tested annualty for
impaimment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumatances Indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
reviewed for impaimment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying amount may nol be
recoverabls. An impaimment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s camying amount exceeds its recoverable
amounl. Tha recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposas of
assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which thers are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwiil that suffered an impaiment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaiment at each reporting date.

{f} Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivatents Includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
finandia! institutions, other short-term, highly liquid Investments with original maturities of three months or less that ane readily
convertlble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown in liabilitles on the batance shaet.




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(g) Trade receivables

Trada receivables are initlally recognised at falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for
impaiment. Trade receivables ara generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongolng basis. Debls which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A
provision for impairmant of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financia! difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation, and default or definguency In payments (more then
30 days overdue) are consldered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provigion is the difference
batween Lhe asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted If the effect of discounting Is minimal. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement in other expenses.

(h} Other financiat assets (loans and receivables)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financlal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on the active
markel. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other recelvables in the balance shest (note 8). The company
assesses at each batance date whether there is objective evidence thal a financial asset is impaired.

{I} Proparty, plant and equipment

Property, ptant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow to the company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The camying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the incoma statement during the financtal period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assats is calculated using the straight-line mathod to allocate thelr cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows: .

Plani and equipmant 5~ 10years
Rental assets . 1 -4 years

The assets’ residual values and ussful lives are reviswed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balanee sheet date.

Y

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverabls amount if the asset's camrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount {note 1(e)). .

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carying amount, These are Included in the Income
statemaent. ‘

(i) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of the financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually pald within 30 days of recognition.

(k) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and tha redemption amount is recognised In
the incoma statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fess paid on the establishment of
loan facilitles, which are not incremental costs relating to the actual draw-down of the facllity, are racognised as prepayments
and amortised on a straight-tine basts over the term of the facility.

Bormowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial fiability that has been extinguished or transferred to anather

party and the consideratlon paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabllities assumed, is recognised In other incoma
or ather expenses.

Bormowings are classified on the balance sheset along with other liabllities in order of thelr liquidity,

{l) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed on the income statement in the period in which they are Incurred.

.




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

L]

{m) Contributed aquity

Ordinary shares are dlassified as equity. - '

_ Incremental costs directly atfributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds. Incremantal costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares for the acquisition of a business are not included in
the cost of the acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

if the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, eg as the result of a share buy-back, those instruments are deducted from
equity and the associated shares are cancelled. No gain or kss is recognised in the income statement and the consideration
paid including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is recognised directly in equity.

{n) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the financial year bul not distributed at the balance date.

{0) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incumred is not

recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In this case It is recognised as par of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST recelvable or payable. The net amount of GST

recovarable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included with other receivables or payablss In the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from Investing or financing activities,
where they are recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office, are presented as operating cash flow.

{p) New accounting standards and interpretations

Recently issued or amended Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations not yet effective and not mandatory for the
year ended 30 June 2007 are not expected to result in significant accounting policy changes or have a material financial impact
on the company. These standards are as follows:

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and AASB 2005-10 Amendments lo Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASE
114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038}

AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 are applicable to annua! reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. AASB 7 Introduces new
disclosuras 10 improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about
axposure to risks arsing from financlal instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,
Including sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces AASB 130 Disciosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financig!
Institutions and the disclosure requirements in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. Itis applicable to all reporting
entitiss. The amendmant to AASB 101 introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capltal and how it manages capital. The company
assessed the impact of AASB 7 and the amendment to AASB 101 and concluded that the main additional disclosures will be the sansitivity

analysis to market risk and the capital disclosures required by the amendment of AASB 101. The Group will apply the standards from annual
reporting periods beginning 1 July 2007.

Ravised AASB 107 Prasentation of Financial Statements

A revised AASB 101 was Issued in October 2006 and s applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The
Group has not adopted the standard early. Application of the revised standard will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements, but will remove some of the disdosures cumently required, including the disclosura about economic dependencies.

AASB B Cperaling Segmeants and AASE 2007-3 Armendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASS 8

AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 are effactive for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2008. AASB B will result in a significant
change In the approach to segmant reporting, as it requires adoption of a “management approach” to reporting on the financla! performance.
The information being reported will be based cn what the key decision-makers use internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding
how to allocate resources to operating segments. The company has not yet decided when to adopt AASB 8. Application of AASE 8 may result
in different segments, segment results and different type of Information being reported in the segment note of the financial report. However, it
will not affact any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

12




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2007

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company’s activities expose it to a varlety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The
company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and sesks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company.

(a} Cradit risk

The company's primary credit risk lies in its lending to its parent entity Retravision (WA} Ltd, which represents approximately
half of the company's assets. The exposure to this debt is limited by the company's Trust Deed which precludes this loan
exceeding $10,000,000. Also the company holds a charge in its favour over all the assets and undertakings of Retravision
(WA) Ltd, excluding the asseta of any of its subsidiaries and deblors. The charge has been registered with the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission and ranks second in priority to a mortgage debenture granted by Retravision (WA) Ltd
in favour of the ANZ Bank. ANZ Bank's mortgage debenture has priority over the Retravision Charga to a limit of $10,502,000,
together with interest, costs and bank charges.

The Company has policles in placa to ensure that the entering Into of operating leases with stores for point of sale computer
systems are only made to stores within the group and to thase stores with an appropriate credit history.

(b) Liquidity risk

Prudent fiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash through the availabliity of funding through the issua of
debentures, The company’s risk management includes accepting up to the maximum allowable lavel of debenture bomrowings
of $15,000,00Q at all times, ensuring the lending of funds to Ratravision (WA) Ltd is capped at the allowable limit pursuant to
the Trus! Ceed of $10,000,000, and maintaining a minimum bank balance of $250,000 at afl times.

{c) Cash fiow and fair value interest rate risk

The company’s interest bearing assets comprise tha at call loan to Retravision (WA) Ltd, as well as funds held in the company’s
operaling bank acoount. Interest rate risk on the loan to Retravision (WA) Ltd is managed via pollcias which ensure that the
interest rate payable by Retravision {WA) Ltd exceeds the highest interest rate offered on any of the types of debentures issued
by the company. Interest on funds held in-the bank account are eamed under a written agreemant with the ANZ bank
stipulating that interest be pald In line with the 11am daily cash rate less a set discount. :

The company also has Interast rate risk on long term borrowings. Borrowings Issued at variable rates expose the company to
cash flow interest rate risk. This Is managed by the at call debenture interest rate being adjusted in line with the 11am dally
cash rate, and interest rate on the loan to Retravision (WA} Ltd being adjustad in line with At Call debenture rate. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the company to fair value interest rate risk. The company’s policy is to periodically review thase

rates to ensure they are competitive whilst ensuring they are below the cost of other finance available to the parent entity
Retravision (WA} Ltd.

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Deascription of segments

Businass segments

The principal activities of the Company involve one operating activity being lending. This involves financing and lending funds
to the immediate parent entity for the purpose of working capital, with these funds generated through the issue of debentures to
Indlviduals and entities within the Retravision (WA} Ltd Group including stores.

As there s only one significant operating segment for the company, separate business segment information is not provided.

Geographical segments

The principat activittes of the Company occur In one geographic segment being Australia, and predominantly in Weastem
Australia. Therefore separate geographical segments are nof provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

4. INTEREST REVENUE AND INTEREST EXPENSE

The following table shows the average balance for each of the major categories of interest bearing assets and liabiiities, the amount
of interest revenue or expensa and the average interest rate.

Interast income - 2007
Cash on hand

Loans to immediate parent entity

Interest incomg - 2008
Cagh on hand

Loans to immediate parent entity

Interest exponse - 2007
Debentures

Interest expense - 2006
Debentures

5. OTHERINCOME

Rental income

6. OTHER EXPENSES
Depraciation —plant, equipment and rental assets

General and administration expanses

-
RS,

ke A,




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

7. INCOME TAX

(a) Income Tax Expense
Currant tax
Deferred incothe tax revenue

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Attributable to profit

Deferred income tax revenue included in income tax expense
comprises: ’

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (note 11)

Decrease in deferred tax liabilitias (note 14)

(b) Numerical reconcillation of income tax expense to prima
facle tax payable

Profit before income tax

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2096 - 30%)

Adjustmants for current tax of prior periods

Income tax expense

{c} Tax consolidation legistation

Retravision (WA) Ltd and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, have implemented the tax
consolidation legisiation as of 1 July 2004. The accounting policy in relation to this legislation Is set out in note 1(d).

On adoption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities In the tax consolidated group entered Into a tax sharing agreement
which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the Joint and several liabllity of the wholly-owned entities, Including Retravision
Finance (WA) Ltd, in the case of the default of the head entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd.

The entillas have also entered Into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities, including Retravision
Financa (WA) Ltd, fully compensate Retravision (WA) Lid for any current tax payable and are compensated by Retravision
{WA) Ltd for any current tax receivable and deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses or unused tax credits thal arg
transterred to Retravislon (WA) Lid under the tax consolidation leglslation. The funding amounts are determined by reference
to the amounts recognised in the wholly-owned entites’, including Retravision Finance (WA) LUd, financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advica from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicabie after the end of the financial year. The head entity may also require payment of
tnterim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding amounts to Retravision (WA} Ltd are
recognised In Retravision Finance (WA) Lid as a transaction with other retated entities {see notes 12 and 19).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

2006
. . %
8. _ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{(a} Reconclliation of cash at the end of the year
Cash at bank (balance per cash flow statement) 2,489,442

{b} Cash at bank
Interest on cash held in the cparating cheque account is payable by the ANZ bank at an interest rate being the daily 11am

calculated cash rate less a differential of 0.40% pa on balances graater than $1,000,000 (currently 5.85%: 2008 5.35%), and
less a differential of 1.00% pa on balances less than $1,000,000 but greater than $50,000 (currently 5.25%: 2006 4.75%).

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Loans lo related parties (immediate parent entity at call)
Other receivables

Prepayments

L

{a) Other recelvables

These amounts generally consist of interest receivable on the company's operating cheque account for the cument month, as
well as outstanding computer lease payments cwing from stores,

(b} Interast rate risk

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is sat out
in the following table.

Loans o relatad parties
Cther receivables

Weightad average intarest rate or
effectiva interest mie (%)

{c} Crodit risk

The company's primary credit risk lles in its loan to Its parent entity Retravislon (WA) Ltd, which represents approximately hatf
of the company's assets. The exposure to this debt is limited by the company’s Trust Deed which precludes this loan
exceeding $10,000,000. The company holds a charge In its favour over 2l the assets and undertakings of Retravision (WA)
Lid, excluding the assets of any of its subsidiaries and debtors, The charge has been registered with the Austratian Securities
and Investments Commission and ranks second in priority to a mortgage debenturs granted by Retravision (WA) Ltd in favour

of the ANZ Bank. ANZ Bank's mortgage debenture has priotity over the Retravision Charge to a mit of $10,802,000, together
with interest, costs and bank charges.




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Plant and Rental assets Total
equipment
$ $ $

At 1 Juty 2005
Cost or fair value 11,969 96,773 . 108,?42
Accurnulated depreciation {11.096) {56,130) (67.226)
Net book amaount 873 40,843 41818
Year ended 30 June 2006 S
Opening net book amount 873 40,643 411516
Additions - 9,990 9990
Disposals - (3,983) {3:083)
Deprediation charge (419) (25,234) B,653)
Closing net book amount 454 21,416
At 30 June 2.006
Cost or fair value 11,960 82,524
Accumulated depreciation {11.515) {61,108)
Net book amount 454 21,418

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2006 rental assets with an original cost of $24,239, but 8 written down value of $3,983

were disposed of.

Plant and Rental assets
equipment
$ $

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amoumnt 454 21,416
Additions - 44,473
Depreciation charge (419) {20,548)
Closing net book amount 35 45,343
At 30 June 2007
Caost or fair value 11,969 126,997
Accumutated depreclation {11,834) (81,854)
Net book amount 3s 45,343

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2007 there were no asset disposals,

23,

Point of Sale computer sguipment recorded under plant and equipment is leased under operating leases to dealers, refer note




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:

Accruals

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off
provisions (Note 14) .

Net deferred tax assets

[

Deferred tax assets ta bo settled within 12 months

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July

Change on implemaentation of tax consolidation legistation
Charged/(credited) to the income statement (Note 7)

Closing balance at 30 June

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors
Intarcompany payable - ultimate parent entity
Other creditors

Uneamed revgnue




Notes to ihe Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

s
13. BORROWINGS
Secured A
Debentures 6,383,371

(a) Debentures

Debentures are issued on either at call, short {fixed for 3, 6 or 9 months} or long (fixed for 1, 2 or 3 year) tarms, with the
principle (and any accrued/reinvested interest) repayable in full at the end of the relevant term.

{b) Assets pledged as security

The rapayment of the debentures, and inlerest payable In respect of the debentures, is secured by a first ranking floating
charge conlalioed in the Trust Deed. The charge is in favour of the Trustee over all the tangibla and intangible assets (Including
goodwill, the undertakings, uncaled capital and called but unpald capital) whatsoever and wheresoever of the company. The
company's assets are in Western Australla and the Company has no guarantor bodles. The charge was registared at the
Australian Securities and Investments Cammission on 26 February 1998 and is allotted number 832689 in the Australlan
Register of Charges,

The carrying amounts of assets pledged és securlty for these borrowings are:

Notes
Floaling charge
Cash 8
Trade and other receivables 9
Property, plant & equipment 10

Total assels pledged as security

{(c) Interost rate risk axposures

Tha following table sets out the company’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average Interast rate by
maturity periods.

Debentures

Welghtad average _
interest rata or effective {oo- S
interest rats {%) i",‘“g s v

b ey




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

14. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable 1o0:

Depreciation *

Accruals

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions
(Note 11)

Net deferred tax liabilites

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12
months

Deferred tax liabilittes to be settied within 12 months

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July

Change on implementation of tax consolidation legislation
Charged/(credited) to the income statement {Note 7)

Closing Balance at 30 June

15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
(a) Share capital
Ordinary shares — tully paid

(b) Ordinary shares

-

P

sty e b o

At 30 June 2007 there were 660,000 fully paid $1 ordinary sharas, with no movements in ordinary shares oceurring during the

two year period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2007.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in proportion to

the number of and amounts paid on the shares heid.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy. [s entitied to one vote, and

upon a poll sach share is entitled to one vote,

16. RETAINED PROFITS
Balance 1 July

Net profit for the year

Balance 30 June

20




Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a) Directors

The following persons were directors of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd during the finandal year:

i)  Chalrman - non-gxacutive
W A Harries

{ii}  Non-executive directors

D Dorsett-Lynn (Deputy Chairman)
G Groppoali

G J Tomich

R G Maidment

{b) Other key management personnel

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company,
directly or indirectly, during the financial year;

Name Posttion Employer
P L C Holt Chief Executive Officer Retravision (WA) Ltd
R George Company Secretary & Chief Financial Cfficer Retravision (WA) Ltd

(c) Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employment benefits
Post-employment benafits

+

ey

R
S n "I"ﬂ.h

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The Company does not directly provide remunaration to the directors and ather key management parsonnel. The direciors of
the Company are also directors of the immediate and ultimate Australian parent entity, Retravision (WA) Lid. Remuneration in
respect of the services provided by the directors and other key management personnel to the Retravision {(WA) Ltd group
(incorparating the Company} s pald by Retravision (WA) Lid. As itis not practicable to separately identify the portion of
remuneration attrlbutable to the management of the affairs of the Company, disclesure has been included in these accounts of
the total remuneration provided in respect of services to the whole Retravislon (WA) Ltd group.

Non-executive directors ’
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the

directors. Non-executive directors’ fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Board. The Board also ensures that non-
exacutive directors’' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market,

Non-executive directors' fees are delermined on the directors’ role, which is periodically recommended for approval by
shareholders. This was last put to vote on 27 November 2006 at which time [t was agreed that the maximum remain at $35,000
for the Chaimnan, $30,000 for the Deputy Chairman and $25,000 per remalning director.

The Company does not provide equity compensation o directors.

Other key managearment personne!
The Company's executive reward framework is in place to ensure reward for performance s competitive and appropriate for the

results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for
shareholders, and canforms with market best practice for delivery of reward.

The remuneration of the Chief Exacutive Officer (CEO) and Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officar (CFO) is determined by
the Board of Directors and the CEQ respeclively, and provides a mix of fixed and variable pay. Cash bonuses were payable
based on the performance of the CEQ and the CFQ as assessed by the Board of Directors and the CEO respectively. They

were payable upon achiavement of key performancae indicators which were determined in April 2006 for the CEO and July 2006
for the CFOQ,

indemnities and insurance
Amounts disclosed for remuneration of directors and other key management personnel exclude insurance premiumns of $20,538
{2006; $24,441) paid by the parent entity in respect of the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance contracts as the contracts do

not specify premiums paid In respect of Individual directors and officers. Information relating to the insurance contracts is set
out in the directors’ report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued

Detalls of remuneration

.~

Detalis of the remuneration of each director, including their personally-related entities, are set out in the table below:

2007 Short-term benefits Post-employment

Cash salary Non-monetary
Name and fees Cash bonus benefits Superannuation Total

$ $ $ $ $

Non-gxeculive direclors
W A Harmries 35,000 - - 3,150 38,150
D Dorsett-Lynn 30,000 - - 2,700 32,700
G Groppoli 25,000 - - 2,250 27,250
G J Tomich 25,000 - - 2,250 27,250
R G Maidment 25,000 - - 2,250 27,250
Sub-total non-
exacutive directors 140,000 - - 12,800 152,600
Othar key management!
pearsonnef
P L C Holt {a) 253,960 125,000 50 33,750 412 760
R George 154,414 30,000 4129 16,597 205,140
Sub-total other key
management
personnel 408,374 155,000 4,179 50,347 617,900
Totals 548,374 155,000 4179 82,947 770,500

{a} Included In the cash salary and fees recetved by P L C Holt was $3,960 for business kilometras travelled in his motor
vehicle, on which mandatory statutory superannuation [s not payable.

2008 Short-term benaefits Post-employment

Cash salary Non-monetary
Name and fees Cash bonus benefits Superannuation Tostal

$ $

Non-executive directors
W A Hamies 35,000 - - 3,150 36,150
D Dorsett-Lynn 30,000 - - 2,700 32,700
G Groppoti 25,000 - - 2,250 27,250
G J Tomich 25,000 - - 2,250 27,250
R G Maidment 14,583 - - 1,312 15,895
R M Doust 10,417 - - 938 11,355
G A Kemp (b) 18,667 - - 1,680 20,347
G W Gaynor (b) 18,687 - - 1,880 20,347
B S Mclaan (b) 18,667 - - 1,680 20,347
Sub-total non-
exaecutive directors 196,001 - - 17,6840 213,641
Other key management
personne!
P L C Holt {c) 249,719 .- 35 22,197 271,951
R George 150,000 5,000 3,684 13,850 172,634
Sub-tota! other key
management
personnel 399,718 5,000 3,719 36,147 444 585
Totals 595,720 5,000 3,719 53,787 658,226

(b) G AKemp, GW Gaynor and B S McLean resigned as directors on 22 February 2006, after which ime G A Kemp, GW
Gaynor bacame members of the newly formed Finance and Operations Advisory Group and B § MclLean became a
member of the Sales and Marketing Advisory Group, both of which provide strategic review and consulting to Retravision
(WA) Ltd. The above numbers include the monthly fee of $500 for the period March to June 2006, received by each of

these former Directors with respect to their participation in these groups. R M Doust retired 25 November 2005 and was
not retained as a consultant,
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17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued

(¢} Included in the cash salary and fees received by P L C Holt was $3,085 for business kilometres travelled in his motor
vehicle, on which mandatory statutory superannuation is not payable.

Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer are formalised in a servica agreement. The
agreement provides for 2 performance related cash bonus, other benefits including a mobile phone and the use of a laptop.
Other major provisions of the agreement relating to remuneration are set out balow.

The agreement may be terminated early by either party with six months notice subject to termination payments as detailed
below,

P L C Holt, Chief Executive Officer
* Agreement is ongoing from commencement date of 14 February 2005.

Base salary and allowances, Inclusive of superannuation for the year ended 30 June 2007 of $272,500 and for the year
ended 30 June 2008 of $357,900, to be raviewed by the board of directors in June 2008.

Bonus payable on achievemnent of key performance Indicators of $70,000 for the year ended 30 June 2007, and $69,000
for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Paymant of a terminatlon benefit on retrenchment by the Company, other than for gross misconduct, equat to twelve
months saary.

Other transactions with key management personnel

A director, Mr W A Harrles, Is a director of Natchez Nominees Pty Ltd. Natchez Nominess Pty Ltd held debentures in and

recelved interest thereen from Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd during the year. The debentures ware issued and interest was
paid under normal tarms and conditions.

A director, Mr D Dorsett-Lynn, is a director of Dorsett Retall Pty Lid. Dorsett Retail Pty Lid held debentures in and recelved

Interest thereon from Raetravision Finance (WA) Lid during the year. The debentures were issued and Interest was paid under
normal ferms and conditions.

A director, Mr R G Maidment, is a director of Orcas Ply Ltd. Orcas Pty Lid held debentures In and recaived intgrast therean

from Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd during the year. The debentures were Issued and interes! was paid under normal terms and
conditions.

Aggregate amounts of each of the above types of other transactions with key management personnel of Retravision Finance
{WA) Ltd:

Amounts recognised as revenue

Rental income received on operating leases

. Amounts recognised as expense

Interest paid on debentures

Amounts recognised as borrowings
Debentures

Transactions with key management personnel

Net withdrawal of funds from the Company through the repayment of
debentures

Other amounts recetvable and payable to key management personnel
and their related entities '

Apgregate amounts at batance date anticipated to be received in future
pericds
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18. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the enlity, its related practices
and non-refated audit firms:

{a) Assurance services

Audil services

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm

Audit and review of financia! reparts and other audit
work under the Corporations Act 2001

(b} Advisory services

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm

Participation in the due dillgence committee and
assistanca with the preparation of the Debenture
Prospectus

It is the Company's policy to employee PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where
PricewaterhouseCaopers’ expertise and experience with the Company are important. These arrangements are principally the
participation in the due dillgence committee and assistance with the preparation of the Debenture Prospectus. Itis the
Company’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.

19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a} Parent entity

The immediate parent entity, and the ultimate Australian parent entity is Retravision (WA) Ltd which owns 100% (2006; 100%)
of the Issued ordinary shares.

{b) Other related entitles

Other related entilies being subsidiaries of Retravision (WA} Ltd, other than Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, consist of Electocom
Ltd, Electcom (Finance) Pty Lid, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd, Comgrigg Pty Ltd, Best Buy Electrical Pty Ltd (formerly A.C.N. 007 885
510 Pty Lid), Saverys Homewares Unit Trust and Saverys Pty Lid.

{c) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 17.
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued

{d) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

208

8
Tax consofidation legisiation -
Current tax payable transferred to the parent entity o 42,047
Revenue / (expenditure) B
Intarast income received from the immediate parent entity o 667.866
Rental income recaived on operating leases from other related entities 2221
Interest paid on debentures issued to other related entities (1071535)
Administration, stalf support, computer and occupancy services : A
provided to the Company by the immediate parent entity 43,855
Other trensactions -
Operating lease contracts entened into by other related entities with the B 1”22 ‘
company - 1122,
Aggregate amounts at batance dats anficipated to be received in future g
periods in relation to operating leases with other retated entities 1. 820
Net deposit of funds with the Company through the issue of debentures AT
with other refated entites 245,725

(e) Outstanding balances arising from transactions with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

Current payables (lax funding agreement)

Parent entity

Current payabiles (debentures issued in bomowings)

Cther related parties

i g

No provision for doubtful debts has been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised
in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued

() Loans to/from related parties

2008

$
At call loan o Retravision (WA) Lid (ultimate Australian parant entity)
Beginning of the year . 5,745,655
Amounts advanced during the year 44'335.000
Repayments received during the year ’ i:(45.41'11'j?,8§.a) |
Interes! charged . 667866
Inerest received - (650,926)
End of year

4,986,007

S

Tax consolidation loan from Retravision (WA) Ltd (ulimate Austratian
parent entity}

Beginning of the year
Amounts advanced during the year

Repayments pald during the year

End of year

No provision for doubtful debts has been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised
in respect of bad or doubtfu! debts due from related parties.

{g) Terms and conditions

Transactions relating to the at call loan provided to the Immadiate parent entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd, are provided in
accordance with company policies as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. Transactions relating 1o the tax

consolidation Joan are provided in accordanca with the tax sharing and funding agreement for the Retravision (WA} Ltd
consolidated tax group.

Operating leases entered into with related entities follow the normal terms and conditions and are at the same terms and
conditions offered to all stores within the Retravision (WA) Ltd Group.

Debentures issued to related entities follow the normal terms and conditions contained in the debenture prospectus, and are at
the same market rates offered to all invastors within the Retravision (WA} Ltd Group.

Administration, staff support, computer and occupancy services provided to the Company by the Immadiata parent entity are
based on actual costs incurred by the parent entity apportioned consistently to Retravision (WA) Lid and its subsidiaries,
including Retravision Finance (WA) Lid. These charges are raviswed annually.
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20. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX TO THE NET CASH FLOWS FROM
CPERATIONS

a) Profit after related income tax 85978

Dapreciafion of property, plant and equipment . 25853
~ Accruad interest payable on debentures 410,946
Accrued interest receivable on loans : (16940)
Changes In assets and liabilities: B
(Increase)/decrease In prepayments i {150)
{Increase)decrease in tax assets v 2'.729

Increase/{decrease) in tax payables
increasef{decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
{increase)decrease In trade and other debtors
Increase/(decrease} in trade and other creditors

42,047

Net cash provided by oparating actlvities

b) Cashon hand

c) Financing and investing activities cash flows
arising from the Issue and repayment of
maturing debentures are presented on
a net basis in the statement of cash flows

21. TRUST DEED

As at the end of the financlal year the Company is in compllance with the Trust Deed condltion which requires liabilittes not to
exceed 95% of the value of tangible assets.

22, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance, nol otherwise dealt with in this report that has significantly
affected, or may significanily affect, the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of
the Company In financla! years subsequent to the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

23. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases Point of Sale computsr equipment under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease
payments receivable on leases of property plant and equipment are as follows:

Minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases
of property plant and equipment not recognised in tha financial
statements are receivable as follows:

Within one year

Later than ona year but not later than 5 years
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the directo;s‘ opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes éet out on pages 5 to 28 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

{ii} giving a true and falr view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2007 and of its performance for the
financial year ended on that date; and

[1:1] there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become dus
and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

% /(-4./(\-4.,,...;

W A Harries (Chairman)
Dated this 21* day of September 2007
Perth, Western Auslratis
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PricowaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

avi

250 S1 Georges Terrace
PERTH WA 6000

GPO Box D198
Independent auditor's report PERTH WA 6840

0X 77 Perth

B Australia

to the member of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd WWW.DWC.Com/au
Telephone +61 8 9238 3000
Facsimile +61 8 5238 9999
WwWwW,pwe.comfau

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd (the company),
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, slatement of
changes In equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant

accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration for Retravision Finance (WA)
“Ltd.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internat control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In
Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the financiat statements and notes,
complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Austrafian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entily's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall prasentation of the financial report,
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Our pracedures include reading the other information in the Annual Report to determine whether it
contains any material inconsistencies with the financia! repon.

For further explanation of an audit, visit our website http://www.pwc.com/au/financialstatementaudit.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by diractors or
management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,

Independence

In condu::ling our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001,

Auditor's opinion on the financial report

fn our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:
)] giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2007 and

of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(t) the company's financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed in Note 1.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Dreyer Perth

Partner ' 21 September 2007
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Fellow shareholders,

I present to you the 46th Annual Report of the company
together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2007.

General Overview

I am very pleased to report that as a group, despite
continued competitor pressure, we have continued $o
build on last year’s very solid performance. Our sales
growth was 17% which was above the market average
and resulted in a record sales figure of $388 million, This

in turn delivered a record profit of $4.7 million before tax.

This is an impressive result and a significant turnaround
from previous years. importantly, | believe that we now
have the right foundations, checks and balances to be

confident in our future business performances.

A strongly performing Western Australian economy has
helped to fuel our business growth and profit increase.
Other factors and initiatives include:

* A strong sales performance from the long standing
core, country and metropolitan dealers-in both South
Australia and Western Australia. This is the largest
and most mature segment of the business;

¢ Enormous growth from the large format store group.
This has been the growth engine of the Group's sales;

= Significantly improved profitability from Retravision
D.A.D. Ltd, our South Australian company owned
stores;

* The formation of the Best Buy Electrical Group to
accommodate those members wishing to leave Betta
Stores,

* Bringing the well known South Australian retailer
Truscotts into our Group;

* Improved strategic relationship and turnover with
Weshuilders, an independent builders’ buying group;

* Another good performance fram our Murray Qakley
store in Darwin, especially, given the large growth
experienced in the previous year; )

* Elecisales defied the odds and exceeded budgets (in a

market that has levelled out) despite stiff opposition;
and '

* The implementation of a set of business critical Key
Performance Indicators to ensure that those
- elements of our business that drive profit are |
monitored daily to ensure continued performance
improvement.

As mentioned previously, the large format group has
driven outstanding growth during the last year, Two
members of that group have received industry
recegnition. Joondalup Retravision again received the
Retravision "Store of the Year Award”, and Kambo's
Retravision was awarded the Appliance Retailers "Store of
the Year”. Congratulations to these outstanding stores,

Overall, our growth in retail sales was 18% up on last
year. These improved sales results, an improvement in
cash position and better trading arrangements
negotiated with our bank ANZ, have all contributed to
deliver an excellent trading result,

We have now worked for 18 months with Waorkhouse,
our advertising agency and | believe the sales results
speak for themselves. They have been able to put
Retravision and our associated brands “out there” in the
market place highly effectively and more cost efficiently.
We look forward to working closely with them to build
more sales across our businesses in the months ahead.
We have also had nearly a full year of " Going the Extra
Mile”, the national advertising campaign.

In the last 12 months, we have launched Best Buy
Electrical and welcomed Truscotts in South Australia. This
has required an amazing effort across the organisation
and reflects the professionalism and work ethic we have
within the company. | would like to recognise the
outstanding efforts of our IT department in getting all
these new businesses connected to our computer system
in record time. The Finance and Marketing teams have
had to take on extra workloads to manage the process.
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None of this would have progressed without the tireless
work of the management team,

" Progress doesn't happen by accident, and | would also
Jike to recognise the vision and planning exercised by
Management, the Board of the Western region, the
Finance and Qperations Group (FOG) and the Sales and
Marketing Group (SMG]). It has been a landmark year and
demanded a big effort across the organisation,

During the year we witnessed the demise of Retravision
{NSW) Ltd (“NSW™) and Betta Stores Limited. These
events left some suppliers with substantial bad debts and
focused credit control firmly at the foot of independent
retailers. It is critical to our success going forward, that
we remain strict and diligent with our provision of credit
to our members. With that in mind we have taken the
additional step of taking out trade credit insurance over

all of our members. This will further strengthen our good

record with our suppliers.

It has been a challenging time for the Group and we
should thank those directors of Western Region who,
with the CEO’ and the other National Board directors,
have worked hard to limit the damage from the NSW
collapse and create trading arrangements through
Retravision Northern Ltd and Retravision Southern Ltd for
the remaining viable NSW members,

Financial Qverview

in the above summary 1 have touched briefly on the results
for the Group. Now let’s consider this in more detail.

With respect to the financial results, the Group has

recorded a profit before tax of $4,699,656 (2006:

$883,153). This significant increase in profit is due to:

* Reduced finance costs. In 2006 the bad debt
associated with Garden City was recorded in this
expense classi?ication;

* Reduced accupancy costs following clgsure of
company owned stores; and

* Reduced payroll costs following closure of company
owned stores.

Retravision (WA) Ltd recorded a profit before tax of

$3,085,431 (2006:; $1,927,499). This improvement in

profit is attributable to: .

* Reduced finance costs. In 2006 the bad debt
associated with Garden City was recorded in this
expense classification; and

+ Reduced borrowing costs from the ANZ bank,

Finally, the profit before tax of the other subsidiaries was
as follows;

2007 2006
Electcom Ltd Profit of $2,888,366 $2,024,163
Retravision
Finance {WA) Ltd  Profit of $108,204 $140,251
Retravision
D.AD. Lid Loss of  ($570,842) ($3,178,089)
Electsales

Under the guidance of Kevin Saxon and his team,
Electsales has increased sales this financial year by 17% to
$22 million. Even at this stage, orders are in hand for
deliveries well into the future. In this highly competitive
area of the industry, the company remains the main
supplier of electrical appliances and hot water systems to
the top builders in Western Australia.

Franchise Operations

Electcom Ltd operates three franchises; West Coast Hi fi,
Fridge & Washer City and the newly formed Best Buy
Electrical. These franchises have had a solid year with the
following retail sales results:

s West Coast Hi Fi - an increase of 35% to $29.6
million;

= Fridge & Washer City - an increase of 4% to $21.3
million; and

* Best Buy Electrical - sales of $8.3 million in its first six
months.

South Australia & the Northern
Territory

As indicated to you above Retravision D.A.D. Ltd has
faced another very challenging year. Directors and
management continue to work in an effort to reduce the
impact the results of this business are having on the rest
of the Group. You will have seen from above that there
has been & significant improvement in the results by
$2.6 million, atbeit still at a foss. To this end we have
undertaken the following:

¢ Closed a number of underperforming stores. Where
possible this was done at the end of the lease and we
are pleased to report that for those stores where we
have exited early, we have been able to sublet the
premises although at a rental below our cost; and
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+ Continued consolidation of functions of the South
Australian Office into the State Office in Western
Australia.

It is worth noting that on a like for like basis the sales of
our company owned stores in South Australia are up year
on year by 8%.

Although Retravision D.A.D. Ltd has continued to incur
losses, what this acquisition has allowed is the organic
growth from the addition of dealers such as Truscotts and
Betta stores in those regions all of which contribute to
turnover and profit of the Group. Our business in South
Australia and the Northern Territory now represents
approximately 25% of our total business mix. Qur
presence in those markets will enable us to continue to
add volume through partnering with other independent
operators in due course.

Warehousing

At least 33% of purchases by members continue to flow
through our group warehousing facilities. Management
continues to work closely with SWADS and our suppliers
1o supply the best possible service for dealers in Western
Australia and South Australia.

We are also pleased 10 announce a general process
enhancement strategy with SWADS and the introduction
of B2B ordering on the warehouse, '

Information Technology .

Our IT team was put to the test this year with the
attainment of the former Betta Store members and
Truscotts stores. Overall we had a successful
implementation of the point of sale and communication
systems into those businesses.

We have also seen the introduction of a number of
initiatives including:

+ Ordering on the warehouse using B2B;
+ The online extended warranty database; and
¢ Online stock on hand lockup in the warehouse.

With regard to the POS Project, we have recently
appointed a National CIO with significant experience in
this area of activity. Finding the right software supplier is
proving more difficult than we anticipated due to the very
demanding needs of our business. This project is likely to
be the biggest investment ever made by our organisatian
and it is crucial that the system we select is fit for
purpose and provides world class suppart for our
organisation for many years to come.

Our Stores

During the last year we have seen significant activity with
respect to store changes within the Group with the sale
of:

* Katanning Retravision to Adrian Dowling;
* Cannington Retravision to Chris Allmark;
* Minlaton Retravision to Chad Liebelt; and
* Broken Hill Retravision to Peter McEvoy.

We also welcomed new stores:
* Port Lincoln Retravision by Brian Ramsey;

¢ (Carla Furnishers Retravision, Alice Springs and Darwin,
by the Venturin family. This ceincided with the closure
of our company owned store in Alice Springs;

¢ Mindarie Retravision by Qcean Keys Pty Ltd;

* Mount Gambier Retravision by Rick Macera. This

coincided with the closure of our company owned
store in that town;

* Kangaroo Island Retravision by Barry Uren; and
* The seven Truscotts stores.

We also saw the closure of the East Fremantle Retravision.

The West Coast Hi Fi group has seen:

e The opening of the Kalgoorlie store by Alan Angwin;
and

* The closure of the Bunbury store,

The Fridge & Washer City Group saw the purchase of the
Cannington store by John Griffiths.

Ddring the year a new brand, Best Buy Electrical, was
created and we admitted stores previously from the Betta
Electrical brand. We welcome each and every one of
them to the Retravision family.

Corporate Governance

The FOG and SMG continue to be an excellent

addition to our governance practices, Of course in
addition to this the Board meets regularly and requires
each director to act in good faith in what they betieve to
be the best interests of the company. The Board
continues to work closely with the company’s independent
external auditor and maintains its role as an audit
committee,

e
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Sponsorship Activity

Retravision members and dealers in both the city and the
country have continued to support their local communities
in a number of different ways. We are proud of your
record in this area and Retravision (WA) Ltd is happy to
build on this at a company level.

The Group's decision to support junior cricket and to
continue to be a major sponsor of the Retravision
Warriars has given us a much higher profile and great
brand exposure to the public. We look forward to
another successful season with the Retravision Warriors
promoting our brand locally and nationaily.

The National Scene

With the migration of NSW members to Retravision
Northern Ltd and Retravision Southern Ltd the National
Board, after much deliberation, have taken the opportunity
to restructure the group and close the National Office. In
doing so, they have created two new positions.

Ken Chambertain has been appointed as National
Merchandising Manager and his primary focus will be to
negotiate Nationa) Trading Terms. He will report at the
CEOQ level to the National Board, Driss Toukhsati has
accepted the position of National Chief Information
Officer and, as | have previously explained, will lead the iT
team and coordinate and supervise the POS project. Both

gentlemen will be located in Melbourne. These strategies .

are aimed at improving unity, cutting costs, improving our
buying and strengthening the brand across Australia and
New Zealand.

We have a number of exciting National initiatives planned
for the next twelve months, including re-negotiating our
National Trading Terms with suppliers and I look forward
to updating you with progress in due course.

The Future

Whilst we continue to work with other state
organisations to improve business outcomes nationally,

I am mindful that our team needs {o continue to focus
significant effort on cur Western business to build on our
recent success and continue to drive our shareholders’
wealth and prosperity.

Improving results from our current position will be very
challenging going forward. | have no doubt that we took
many of our competitors by surprise last year. They
certainly now know what we are capable of and we can
expect even more competition this year from the large
corporates who are investing in new footprint in Western
Australia every month.

We still have numerous internal challenges to address,
including brand awareness, implementing consistent
standards and disciplines across the business, succession
planning and continuing to drive an increasing large
format footprint to match our competitors.

Your management and the board are working on a
number of “local” projects to focus on these important
issues and to continue to increase our turnover and
market penetration. With a solid position to work from,
and with your continued support, we are confident of
achieving our objectives in the coming year,

Members, shareholders and franchisees have given the
company great support and record levels of sales through
the period. | thank you for your endeavors and look
forward to assisting you to improve your businesses even
further this year.

The CEO, CFO, Sales & Marketing Manager and the staff
have worked tirelessly to improve our business and
financial performance and | sincerely thank them. | wish
to also acknowledge the contribution of the members of
the Sales and Marketing Group and the Finance and
Operations Group and thank them for the time they give.
Finally, | would like to recognise the commitment of your
directors and advisers and commend their deliberations
through another year of significant change.

Whilst we have chalfenges ahead of us, with your
continuing levels of support, | believe we have all the
tools necessary to meet the future head on, strengthen
our brands and deliver opportunities for those who wish
to grow.

Bill Harries
Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group} consisting of Retravision
(WA) Ltd and the entities it controlted at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2007.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Retravision (WA) Ltd during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of
this report;

W A Harries

O Dorsett-Llynn

G Groppoli

G | Tomich .
R G Maidment

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
Director qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

W A Harries Mr Harries has had over thirty years of electrical retail experience. He has held his position on the
Board since 1986 and was appointed Deputy Chairman in 1998 and Chairman in November 2001.
He is the National Chairman, in his capacity as a director of Retravision Pty Ltd, and has held this
position fror October 2005. He currently holds a directorship in Natchez Nominees Pty Ltd, which
operates Retravision stores in Kalamunda and Armadale. He is also a director of Retravision Finance
{WA) Ltd, Electcom Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Lid and Retravision Pty Ltd.

D Dorsett-Lynn  Mr Dorsett-Lynn was appointed a director of the company in November 1999 and Deputy Chairman in
Novemnber 2003. He is Managing Director for Dorsett Retail Pty Ltd which operates Retravision stores
in Margaret River, O'Connor and Bunbury, as well as operating a Fridge and Washer City store in
Bunbury. In addition he sits on the Boards of Retravision Finance (Wa) Ltd, Electcom Ltd and
Retravision D.A.D. Ltd. He is also a director of Retravision Pty Ltd.

G Groppotli Mr Groppoli holds the degrees Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Jurisprudence from the University of
Western Australia, He is Managing Director of Milners Pty Ltd and is a consultant to a Perth law firm.
He was appointed to the Board of the company in June 1999, He also holds directorships in
Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, Electcom Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd and Automotive Holdings Group Ltd.

G J Tomich Mr Tomich was appointed a director of the company in November 2003, He is also a director of
Jetgold Pty Ltd, operating a Retravision store in Rockingham and Kantom Pty Ltd that operates a
Retravision store in Kalgoorlie. Mr Tomich has been actively involved in the retail industry since 1984,
Jn addition he sits on the Boards of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd, Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D.
Ltd. He was appointed as a director of Retravision Pty Ltd from 26 April 2007. Mr Tomich is the
Chairman of the Sales and Marketing Group.

R G Maidment  Mr Maidment was appointed a director of the company in November 2005. He is also a director of
Orcas Pty Ltd, operating a Retravision store in Willetton. Mr Maidment has been actively involved in the
electrical retail industry since 1990. In addition he sits on the Boards of Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd,
Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd. Mr Maidment is the Chairman of the Finance and Operations

Group,
Company Secretary qualifications, experience and special responsibilities
R George Mr George is a Chartered Accountant and joined the Group in June 1999 and has been Company

Secretary since January 2000. He is Company Secretary of all Group Entities and also holds the rote of
Chief Financial Officer. Mr George is a member of the Finance and Operations Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The continuing principal activities of the Group during the year were:

* Provision of financial and marketing services to electrical retailers;

*  Wholesaling to electrical retailers; .

* Wholesaling electrical goods to registered builders;

* Franchise operations;

¢ Receive deposits from Retravision members and associated parties;

* Computer rental operating lease facility to Retravision members and associated parties;

* Loans for the establishment and development of Retravision businesses; and

* Operation of a number of company owned electrical retail stores in South Australia and the Northern Territory,

TRADING RESULTS

The consolidated net profit attributable to members of Retravision (WA) Ltd for the year was $3,468,264 (2006:
$460,965) after an income tax expense of $1,231,392 (2006: $422,188).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been declared or paid during the financial year (2006: $nil). The directors do not recommend the
payment of any dividend.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ,
A review of operations and results of the Group for the financial year is contained in the Chairman's Review.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
During the financial year, the following significant changes in the state of affairs occurred in the Group:

* The Group established a new franchise and brand, Best Buy Electrical. This consists of twelve stores formally from the
Betta Electrical Group;

* In April 2007 the Truscotts business, operating seven electrical retail stores in South Australia, were admitted as a
member to the Group, whereby the business purchases'its electrical product from Retravision (WA} Ltd;

* In November 2006 the Group closed an electrical retail store in Alice Springs;

* In March 2007 the Group closed the in-house interest free program; and

* In March and June 2007, the Group sold electrical retail stores in Mt Gambier and Broken Hill. The financial impacts
of these sales have been fully recorded in the 30 June 2007 result.

Other than the matters noted above, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the
financial year not otherwise disclosed in this report.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Since the end of the financial year the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance, not otherwise dealt with in
the financial statements, that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Gioup, the results

of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in financial years subsequent to the financial year ended 30 June
2007, .

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In the opinion of the directors, likely developments in the operations of the Group known at the date of this report have
been covered within the report.

Further informatiqn as to likely developments in the operations of the Group, including the expected results of those
operations in subsequent financial years could in the opinion of the directors prejudice the interests of the Group and
have therefore not been included in this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS
The Group is not subject to any significant environmental regulations in relation to its principal activities.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors’ meetings held during the year ended 30 June 2007, and the number of meetings attended by
each director were:

Number of Meetings

18
Number of meetings attended by:
W A Harries 17
D Dorsett-lynn 14
G Groppoli 12
G J Tomich 14
R G Maidment 17

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financi.al year Retravision (WA Ltd paid insurance premiums totalling $20,538 (2006: $24,441) to insure the
directors and company secretary of the company and its controlled entities named in this report.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabilities that arise from conduct
involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to
gain advantage for themselves or someane else or to cause detriment to the Group. It is not possible to apportion the
premium between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other liabilities.

INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

Retravision (WA) Ltd has entered into agreements to indemnify certain officers of the company and related bodies
corporate.

The officers of the company covered by the agreement include: W A Harries, D Dorseti-Lynn, G Groppoli, R G Maidment,
G ) Tomich, P L C Holt and R George,

The indemnity relates to any liability:

* To a third party (other than the company or a related bady corporate) unless the liability arises out of conduct
involving a lack of good faith; and

* For costs and expenses incurred in successfully defending civil or criminal proceedings or in connection with an
application, in refation to such proceedings, in which relief is granted under the Corporations Act 2001.

AUCITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with Section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2007 is set out
on page 9. .

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

/

W A Harries (Chairman)
Perth
Dated this 31st day of October 2007
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Auditors’ Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Retravision {WA) Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2007 1 declare that to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been: AR

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence:requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Retravision (WA) L1d and the entities it controlled during the period.

Pierre Dreyer
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legistation
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

‘CONSOLIDATED &, - PARENT

a 2007 | 2006 2007 2006
| $ | $ s $

i |

Revenue l E
Sale of goods . 388,217,207 ! 332,793,306 | 374,693,346 | 323,340,151
Cost of sale of goods i 370,273,954 | 315,023,995 | 366,325,548 | 314,163,577
Gross profit from sale of goods | 17,943,253 | 17,769,311 8,367,798 | 9,176,574

Other revenue P E
Revenue from services 4 | 397,625 E 421,946 367,787 341,350
Other revenue . 4 ' 2,424,523 ¢ 2,352,431 |, 2,600,537 1,321,318
; 2,822,148 E 2,774,377 2,968,324 1,662,668

Expenses ' !
Administration | 4069908 |  6072,424 | 4,228,506 | 4,506,903
Information systems I 1,235954 ¢ 1,135,184 1,238,472 1,135,184
Marketing and store operations 988,969 1,097,418 988,969 1,097,418
Wholesale distribution 310912 418,052 ! 310,912 351,245
Retaif 5983975 7,202,028 - -
Finance operations 1,859,281 » 1,962,996 , . -
Borrowing costs 5 1,263,226 ' 1,772,433 | 1,483,742 1,820,993
16,112,225 ' 19,660,535 8,250,691 8,911,743

Share of associate’s net profit accounted | i
for using the equity method 40 46,480 - - -
Profit before income tax | 4,699,656 , 883,153 | 3,085,431 1,927,499
Income tax expense/{benefit) 6 r1,231,392 | 422,188 l (53,284) 579,967

Profit attributable to equity holders of ! ! :

Retravision (Wa) Ltd 25({b} I 3,468,264 E 460,965 ’ 3,138,715 1,347,532

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

L
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BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2007

CONSOUDATED PARENT
2007 | 2006 2007 | 2006
' $ | $ $ L]
!
CURRENT ASSETS !
Cash and cash equivalents 7 i 5,103,003 ' 3,611,903 120,855 89,009
Trade and other receivables . 8 ; 48,370,753 | 41,750,234 | 47,730,035 | 40,358,222
Inventories 9 ' 19,043,123 - 15,897,894 10,808,009 7,535,558
Current tax assets 10 - 252,248 - 252,248
Other 1 2,823,194 2,753,768 | 2,534,831 ' 2,335,423
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,340,073 64,266,047 | 61,193,730 50,570,460
NON - CURRENT ASSETS ' ?
Trade and other receivables 12 1,057,151 1,674,102 3,573,000 3,750,000
Investments accounted for using the 5
equity method : 13 57,480 - - -
Other financial assets 14 . 5500 | 4,954,453 | 4,954,453
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,112,186 1,320,404 352,851 371,610
Deferred tax assets 16 698,225 ‘ 768,128 556,581 320,858
Intangible assets 17+ 330,446 330,446 . -
TOTAL NON - CURRENT ASSETS 3,255,488 ‘ 4,098,580 9,436,885 9,396,921
TOTAL ASSETS ‘ 78,595,561 ii 68,364,627 70,630,615 59,967,381
CURRENT LIABILITIES , i
Trade and other payables 18 i 54,991,086 { 51,411,742 53,717,108 49,632,599
Current tax liability * 1,161,489 - 1,161,489 -
Borrowings 19 7,760,666 | 5,684,896 | 7,210,213 | 4,986,007
Provisions 20 650,320 L 583,556 339,205 294,387
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 64,563,561 | 57,680,194 62,428,015 54,912,993
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Borrowings 21 7,257,422 7.367,221 7,000,000 7,000,000
Provisions 23 695,513 - 706,411 181,706 ‘ 172,209
TOTAL NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,952,935 . 8,073,632 [ 7,181,706 7,172,209
TOTAL LIABILITIES 72,516,496 : 65,753,826 l 69,609,721 62,085,202
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 6,079,065 2,610,801 1,020,894 t (2,117,821}
EQUITY ]
Contributed equity 24 {a) 1,297,192 ’ 1,297,192 1,297,192 1,297,192
Reserves 25 {a) 3,100 3,100 3,100 1 3,100
Retained profits{accumulated losses) 25 (b) 4,778,773 E 1,310,509 (279,398) E {3,418113)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY) . 6,079,065 | 2,610,801 1,020,894 | (2,117.821)

L

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

“.CONSOLIDATED - PARENT

2007 2006 h 2007 | 2006
$ § s | $
I 1
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY) AT THE , | !
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2,610,801 . 2,149,836 | (2,117,821)| (3,465,353)
Profit for the year (total recognised income | '
and expense for the year) 3,468,264 460,965 | 3,138,715 | 1,347,532
, |
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY) AT THE END : l |
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR attributable to the i
equity holders of Retravision (WA} Ltd’ 6,079,065 | 2,610,801 | 1,020,894 ;| (2,117.821)

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CasH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

- CONSOLIDATED PARENT
$ $ $ $
. w i

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES !
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods ! ‘L
and services tax) . 429,058,672 | 370,019,330 | 409,060,576 | 353,901,358
Payments to suppliers, employees and members 1 1
{inclusive of goods and services tax) (428,976.136), {(366,662,261) | (410,665,664) (351,370,556)

Interest received | 391,146 327,983 294,921 350,523
Interest and ather costs of finance paid i (1,263,226)| (1,772,433)| (1,483,146)  (1,804.053)
Dividends received 3 - | -| 1,500,000 -
Income tax refunded 3 © 252,248 1,087,910 252,248 1,072,547
Income tax paid L - 480414)| (1,241,849)  (121,551)
NET CASH INFLOW/AOUTFLOW) FROM ! | §

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 35 } (537.296)i 2,520,115 ] (2,282,514} 2,028,268
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i ‘

Proceeds from sale of property, plant ' !

and equipment k 19.214 | 48,345 - -
Payments for property, plant and equipment ‘ (185,346)? (153,264) (86,250), (44,670}
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM ' j \

INVESTING ACTIVITIES . (166,132} (104,919) (86,250} (44,670}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' ; }

Loans made (22,625} (50,194) - -
Loan repayments received : 251,182 F - 177,000 -
Repayment of borrowings i (825,428): (3,789,098) (738,189) (3,045,044)
Proceeds from borrowings ! 2,961,799 E - 2,961,799 -
Proceeds from hire purchase sale and leaseback * - ! 410,000 - -
Hire purchase payments ' (170,400),  (332,773) . -
NET CASH INFLOW/AQUTFLOW) FROM ‘ : ‘_

FINANCING ACTIVITIES . 2,194,528 | (3,762,065) 2,400,610 (3,045,044)
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH HELD 1,491,100 : (1,346,869) 31,846 (1,061,446)
Cash at the beginning of the financial year " 3,611,903 | 4,958,772 89,009 1,150,455
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIALYEAR 7 | 5,103,003 | 3,611,903 120,855 89,009
Financing arrangements o9

Non-cash financing and investing activities 36

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial report includes separate
financial statements for Retravision (WA) Ltd as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of Retravision
(WA) Lid and its subsidiaries.

{a) Basis of Preparation

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the
Corporations Act 2001, :

Compliance with IFRS

Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS).
Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the consolidated financial statements and notes of Retravision (WA) Ltd comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The parent entity financial statements and notes also comply with IFRS
except that it has elected to apply the relief provided to parent entities in respect of certain disclosure requirements
contained in AASB 132 Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
() Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Retravision {WA) Ltd
{"parent entity”} as at 30 June 2007 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Retravision (WA) Ltd and
its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential

voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible aré considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity, '

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date control ceases. ;

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer to note
1(e).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of Retravision (WA) Ltd,
(i) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not contral, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for in the parent
entity financial statements using the <ost method and in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised in the

parent entity’s income statement, while in the consolidated financial statements they reduce the carrying amount of the
investment.
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(b} Principles of Consalidation continued
{ii} Associates continued '

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, Accounting policies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. ‘

(c) Income Tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
current Australian tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to terporary differences
and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is pravided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax fosses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in
equity.
Tax consolidation legislation

Retravision (WA} Ltd and its wholly-owned subsidiaries have implemented the tax consolidation legislation from 1 July
2004.

The head entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own
current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be a stand alone taxpayer in its own right.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Retravision (WA} Ltd, also recognises the current liabilities (or
assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities
in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabifities, arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. Details about the tax funding agreement are disclosed in note 6.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as a contribution to {or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consclidated entities.

(d) Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date with a corresponding entry in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{e) Business Combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, including business combinations
involving entities or businesses under common control, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an acquisition, the
value of the instruments is their published market price as at the date of exchange unless, in rare circumstances, it can be
demonstrated that the published price at the date of exchange is an unreliable indicator of fair value and that other
evidence and valuation methods provide a more reliable measure of fair value. Transaction costs arising on the issue of
equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minarity interasts. The excess of the
cost of acquisitiorr over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill
{refer note 1(ab)}. If the cost of acquisition is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of identifiable net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement, but only after a reassessment of the
identification and measurement of the net-assets acquired.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's increrental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions,

{f) Inventories
(i) Finished Goods
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after

deducting rebates. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Inventory costs are determined using the first in
first out basis,

(i) Other
Other inventories are comprised of promational material and stationery and are stated at the lower of cost and ret

realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

{9) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs ‘are included in the asset's cafrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and equipment 1 to 40 years
Hire purchase assets 3 to 5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement,
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(h) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards benefits
incidental to ownership are classified as finance leasesthire purchase. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minirum lease payments. The
corresponding rerttal obligations, net of finance charges, are included in interest bearing liabilities, Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term, '

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases (note 29). Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease,

The present value of future payments for surplus leased space under non-cancellable operating leases which are not
onerous contracts are recognised as a liability, net of sub-leasing revenue, in the period in which it is determined that the
leased space will be of no future benefit to the Group. The net future lease payments are discounted using the prevailing
cost of finance to the Group. )

Liabilities for surplus leased space under non-cancellable leases which are onerous contracts are recognised on the basis
described in the accounting policy note for onerous contracts (note 1(y)).

(i) Leasehold Improvements

The cost of improvernents to or on leasehold properties is amortised over the unexpired portion of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvement of the Group, whichever is the shorter. Leasehold improvements held at the
reporting date are being amortised between one month and eight years.

() Impairment of Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are revieweqd for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

(k) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment. Trade receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from date of statement for all debtors.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off. A provision for impaired receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the

" difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is minimal. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement,

() Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year
and which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY‘OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{m) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities, which are not an incremental cost relating to the actual draw-down of the facility, are
recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the facility.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
other income or other expenses.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

{n) Maintenance and Repairs
Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewal costs are charged as expenses when incurred,

{o) Web Site Costs

Costs in relation to web sites controlled by a controlled entity are charged as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred unless they relate to the acquisition of an asset, in which case they are capitalised and amortised over their
period of expected benefit. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a web site, and
ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are considered to be expenses. Costs incurred in building or
enhancing a web site, to the extent that they represent probable future economic benefits controlled by the controlied
entity that can be reliably measured, are capitalised as an asset and amortised over the period of the expected benefits
being 2.5 years,

(p) Employee Benefits
()- Wages and salaries, annual leave and personal leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary bénefits and annual leave expected to be settled within

twelve months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for
personal leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable as there is no liability to
pay any unused portion on termination of an employee.

(i} Long service leave

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date is recognised in the
current provision for employee benefits and is measured in accordance with (i) above. The liability for long service leave
expected 1o be settled more than twelve months from the reporting date is recognised in the non-current provision for
employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting-date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and period of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields
at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(ili) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage

voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than twelve months after balance sheet date are discounted to present
value. ‘ :
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RETRAVISION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- FOR THE YEAR ENCED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{p) Employee Benefits continued
(iv) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses on a formula that takes into consideration the achievement

of defined key performance indicators for senior management. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practise that has created a constructive obligation.

(q) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of returns, trade allowances and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been

resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognysed for the major business activities as follows:
(i) Sale of electrical products

A sale is recorded when goods have been despatched to a customer pursuant to a sales order and the invoice received
from the appropriate supplier for co-operative sales and when goods are despatched for sales through the wholesale
division.

{ii) Lease of computer systems and software

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight line basis over the lease term. The assets
subject to these leases are recorded as property, plant and equipment (rental assets). Further information on leasing
arrangements is contained in note 39.

(i) Interest on loans

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
(iv) Dividend incorne

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established.

(r) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within current labilities on the balance sheet.

(s) Service Warranties
Costs relating to products still under warranty are charged as an expense when incurred.

(t) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs include:

* Interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings;

»  Costs of establishing and maintaining financing facilities; and

* Finance lease charges.

{u) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(v) Other Financial Assets
Classification

The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its investments at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on the
active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than twelve months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other
receivables in the balance sheet {notes 8 and 12}.

Recognition and de-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially afl the risks.

Impairment

The Group assess at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement,

(w} Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted 1o conform to changes in presentation for the current year.

(x) Consumer Credit Receivables
From 1 July 2005 to 30 March 2007

Under an agreement dated 27 November 2000, consumer credit receivables were sold to a special purpose trust, the
"DAD Trust’. Retravision D.A.D. Ltd could, but was not obliged to sell receivables to the DAD Trust and the DAD Trust
could but was not obligated to purchase some or all of the credit receivables.

In compliance with the agreement 15% of the value of the consumer credit pool was deposited with the DAD Trust as a
subordinated loan. The full amounts of these securitised receivables were recognised as a finance debtor and the amount
received from the sale of these receivables was recognised as a kiability.

Receivables that fail to fulfil certain performance criteria (“ineligible loans™) could be sold back by the DAD Trust to

Retravision D.A.D. Ltd or offset against the subordinated loan. In certain cases Retravision D.A.D. Ltd was able to sell the
debts onto the originating entity.

The term sheet stated Retravision D.A.D. Ltd's repurchase obligation for loans was to be no greater than the subordinated
loan amount, ’

Accordingly, each year end the directors reviewed the performance of the ineligible loans and established a provision for
impaired loans that originated within the Group and which were expected to be sold back in the future or offset against
the subordinated loan. : .

From 31 March 2007 to 30 June 2007

On 31 March the Group closed this consumer credit facility and repaid the finance liability (note 18). All debtors that
remained at this time are continuing to repay the amounts owing under the exact repayment terms and conditions of
their coniract and are still recorded as finance debtors {notes 8 and 12).

Collectability of the remaining consumer credit receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to
be uncollectible are written off. A provision for impaired receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to shart-term receivables are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is minimal. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(y) Onerous Contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under that contract, and only after any impairment losses to assets
dedicated to that contract have been recognised.

The provision recognised is based on the excess of the estimated cash flows to meet the unavoidable costs under the
contract over the estimated cash flows to be received in relation 1o the contract, having regard to the risks of the
activities relating to the contract. The net estimated cash flows are discounted using the Group' interest rate at balance
date to match, as closely as possible, the expected future payments, where the effect of discounting is material.

(2) Goods on Order

The Group orders inventory from external third parties. These third parties invoice the Group at the time of despatch of
the goods. As the title of goods does not transfer to the Group until the goods are received, the Group recognises a
ltability to trade payables and an asset Goods on Order at the time of receipt of the tax invoice. Upon receipt of the
goods an inventory asset is recorded and the asset Goods on Order is reduced accordingly.

{aa)Segment Reporting

A business segment is identified for a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is identified
when products or services are provided within a particular economic envirenment subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

{ab) Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assefs. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill is not
amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

(ac) Provisions

Provisions for commissions, bonuses, surplus leased space, legal claims and warranties are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of simitar abligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at balance sheet date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the lability.

(ad) Contributed Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares for the acquisition of a business are not
included in the cost of the acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{(ad) Contributed Equity continued

If the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, e.g. as the result of a share buy-back, those instruments are deducted
from equity and the associated shares are cancelled. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss and the
consideration paid including any directly attributable incremental costs {net of income taxes) is recognised directly in
equity.

(ae) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense,

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included with other receivables or payables in the
balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities, where they are recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office, are presented as operating cash
flows.

LY

(af) New Accounting Standards and interpretations

Recently issued or amended Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet effective and not mandatory for
the year ended 30 June 2007 are not expected to result in significant accounting policy changes or have a material
financial impact on the company.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting

Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 &
AASB 1038]

AASE 7 and AASB 2005-10 are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. AASB 7
introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of
qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including specified
minimum disclosures about credit risk, Tiquidity risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk. It
replaces AASB 130 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial institutions and the disclosure
requirements in AASB 132 financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. It is applicable to all reporting entities. The
amendment to AASB 101 introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and how it manages capital.

The Group assessed the impact of AASB 7 and the amendment to AASB 101 and concluded that the main additional
disclosures will be the sensitivity analysis to market risk and the capital disclosures required by the amendment of AASB
101. The Group will apply the standards from annual reporting periods beginning 1 July 2007.

Revised AASB 107 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised AASB 101 was issued in October 2006 and is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2007. The Group has not adopted the standard early. Application of the revised standard will not affect any
of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but will remove some of the disclosures currently required, -
including the disclosure about economic dependencies.

AASB 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 8 .

AA3B 8 and AASB 2007-3 are effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009. AASB 8
will result in a significant change in the approach to segment reporting, as it requires adoption of a “management
approach” 1o reporting on the financial performance. The information being reported will be based on what the key
decision-makers use internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how 1o allocate resources to operating
segments. The Group has not yet decided when to adopt AASB 8. Application of AASB 8 may result in different

segments, segment results and different types of information being reported in the segment note of the financial report.
However, it will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

22




RETRAVISION

NoTes T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(ag) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure
purposes. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
carrying value less impairment of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair value due to their
short term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management program seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group. The Group uses a derivative financial instrument, an interest rate swap, to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk managementis carried out by senior management and the Board of Directors.
(a) Credit risk _
{i) The Group’s primary credit risk lies with the trading accounts it grants to the franchisees {dealer(s)). The Group’s

policies ensure that all new potential dealers must pass a rigorous application process that ultimately requires the
Board of Director’s approval. ’ '

Further the Group has a specific Credit Policy, and set Gut below are the key points of this policy:

*  Each dealer is given an approved credit limit at the time of opening the trading account. This limit is usually
based on 2.5 months estimated purchases.

e Dealers are required 1o provide security to cover 100% of the approved credit limit. Where security is insufficient
to cover the approved credit limit discretion may be given by the Board of Directors or such other sub-committee

it may delegate those powers to from time to time, to accept a lower level of security. The security is usually by
way of:

- Afirst registered mortgage debenture (Charge) over the assets of the dealer’s trading entity or a Bill of Sale
if trading as an individual or partnership;

- Collateral security over other real property; and
- Directors’ Guarantees.

¢ If a higher credit fimit is required, due to increased business activity or the proposed opening of an additional
store, an "Application for Increased Credit Limit” will be required to be completed. This increase may either be
at the instigation of the dealer or Retravision (WA) Ltd.

»  Events which may trigger a review of the dealer's security position with Retravision (WA) Ltd may include but are
not limited to:

- Default under the credit policy;
- Exceeding the dealer’s credit l!mit over three consecutive months; or
- Any ghange to the business structure or operating performance.

*  Up-stamping of security documents and additional security may be required as a condition of approval of the
increased credit limit and the costs will be borne by the dealer.

*  Retravision (WA) Ltd may request early payment of the account for that portion that exceeds the credit limit.
*  Credit limits may be adjusted from time to time by Retravision (WA) Ltd at its discretion.

+ [tis the intention of Retravision (WA) Ltd that credit limits for all stores will be reviewed at least every three
years. Reviews may be earlier for those stores where the credit limit is being exceeded on a regular basis.

*  Dealers are required to notify Retravision (WA) Ltd of any proposed business restructure, sale, closure etc. at
least 60 days prior to completion.

*  Financial Statements for each financial year are to be submitted by 30 September following the end of the
financial year, -

The Group has purchased a trade credit insurance policy to assist with the exposure to credit risk. Further details of
this policy are contained in note 8,

(i) The Company has policies in place to ensure that the entering into of operating leases with stores for point of sale
computer systems are only made to stores within the Group and to those stores with an appropriate credit history.
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

(b} Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash through the availability of funding through the ‘at
cal’ loan with Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd and the ANZ Invoice Finance Facility (notes 19 and 21).

(c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest bearing assets comprise of funds held in the Group’s various bank accounts and loans made to
stares. Interest on funds held in the bank accounts is earned under a written agreement with the ANZ Bank. Interest on

loans to stores is reviewed every six months and is set at two percentage points higher than the 180 day ANZ Bank bill
rate.

The Group also has interest rate risk on long term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. This is managed by the ‘at call debenture interest rate being adjusted in line with the 11am
daily cash rate. The Group's policy is to periodically review these rates to ensure they are competitive, Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Group policy is to fix the rates for approximately 40% of its
borrowings from the Inveice Finance Facility provided by our bank, ANZ. This policy is complied with at year end.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps
have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the
Group agrees with ANZ to exchange monthly, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjusiment to the carrying amount of the assets within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwilt has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 1(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of assumptions. Refer to note 17 for details of these assumptions and the potential
impact of changes to these assumptions.

{ii) Income Taxes

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses. However, utilisation of the tax losses
depends on the ability of the Group to continue to satisfy the continuity of ownership test and the same business test.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR'ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

- " PARENT

‘ 2007 | 2006
;_ $ $ $ $
4. OTHER REVENUE ' ' , !
Revenue from services . i ‘
Members’ administration fees : 117.422 ‘ 190,874 118,927 190,874
Store POS levy 236,620 | 137,595 248,860 150,476
Expense recoveries 4 - 49,740 . -
Installation fees 8,155 | - - -
Securitisation charge to dealers ! 35,423 43,737 - -
397,625 421,946 367,787 341,350
Other revenue '
Dividend income from related party : - - 1,500,000 -
Interest 391,146 327,983 294,921 | 350,523
Interest free credit charge ‘ 56,380 87,757 - -
Net profit on sale of store ‘ 88,937 | - . -
Recoupment of costs - controlled entities l - - 651,868 772,106
Recoverable costs income I 1,653,163 1,658,376 - -
Sales tax refunds * j 32,7 1 161,918 32, 161,918
Other | 202,186 | 116,397 121,037 36,771
I 2,424,523 ‘; 2,352,434 2,600,537 1,321,318
i 2,822,148 ! 2,774,377 2,968,324 1,662,668
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

CONSOQLIDATED ;. ~ - Ny PARENT .
2007 ! 2006 2007 2006
$ . $ S ]

5. EXPENSES

Profit before income tax {expense¥benefit
includes the following specific expenses:

I !
| !
1
|

Losses

Net loss on disposal of property, plant _ ‘ i
and eguipment 1,788 | 624 4,247 ! 5,359
Impairment of assets

Investment in controlled entity : - i - 636,562 -
Inventory 593,415 r 229,523 514,953 82,612
Property, plant and equipment : - 53,547 - -
Expenses . _ " !
Depreciation/amortisation : {t
Property, plant and equipment ) . 37‘2.562 i 419,050 100,762 111,907
Amortisation : |
Website development g - | 465 - -
Impaired trade receivables ?
Impaired trade receivables 213,668 : 1,946,500 129,192 1,825,362
Write back of provision for impairment . ‘
not required (128,163). (545,806) (137,517) (545,806)

85,505 . 1,400,694 (8,325); 1,279,556
Finance costs ' | :

Interest paid — controlled entity ‘ . - 706,748 667,866
Interest paid — other parties 1,174,820 1 1,678,468 | 703,244 1,059,162
Other costs of finance 88,406 93,965 73,750 93,965

1,263,226 , 1,772,433 1,483,742 | 1,820,993

i
. |
Rental expense relating to operating lesses ! i
Minimum lease payments on operating leases © 1,128,387 ! l

1,857,455 179,493 200,867

26




NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

PARENT "

6. INCOME TAX
(a) Income tax expense

Current tax . 1,161,489 - 182,439 369,113
Deferred tax | 69,903 285270 | (235723)| 209,275
Adjustment for cUrrent tax of prior periods ! - 136,918 - 1,579
' 1,231,392 422,188 (53,284) 579,957
- |
Deferred income tax (revenue)/expense !
included in income tax expense/(benefit} comprises: o
Decreasef(increase) in deferred tax assets (note 16} 94,506 312,390 | (234,510) 208,474
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 22) (24,603) (27,120) [ (1.213) 804
69,903 | 285270 | (235,723) 209,275
-
(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax '
expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable : P }
Profit before income tax expense 4,699,656 883,153 - 3,085,431 . 1,927,499
Income tax expense calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) 1,409,897 264,946 925,629 578,250
Tax effect of amounts which are not (deductible) ' ‘ :
assessable in calculating taxable income: ' ;
Impairment of controlled entity - - 1 190,969 -
Share of associates net profit {13,944)! - - -
Non-deductible other expenses 79,736 34,273 43,340 11,782
Temporary differences not recognised : | 282,990 | - - -
Dividend income not assessable ' - - (450,000) -
Other non-assessable income (6,677)| {6.753) | 1,636 {11,644)
1,752,002 292,466 : 711,574 578,388
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods - 136,918 - 1,579
[ 1,752,002 429,384 711,574 579,967
Recognition of current year losses of controlled
entity to reduce current tax expense - - (244,248) -
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce )
deferred tax expense (123,875) - (123,875} -
Previously unrecognised tax losses now recouped
to reduce current tax expense (396,735) (7.196) {396,735} -
Incorme tax expense/(benefit} 1,231,392 | 422188 | (53,284) 579,967
F 1
(c) Tax losses incurred by an Australian entity E 1
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset | E
has been recognised - 1,720,631 ! - 1,720,631
Potential tax benefit at 30% -i 516,189 | . 516,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

" " JCONSOLIDATED | PARENT

2007 2006 2007 2006

. L $ $ $ $
6. INCOME TAX continued | i
{(d) Unrecognised temporary differences | i
Deductible temporary differences of controlled |
entities for which no deferred tax asset is '
recognised in the balance sheet. | {

Deferred tax assets ! 283,829 - . -

Deferred tax liability (839) . - -

Net deferred tax assets not recognised I 282,990 | - - -

Net deferred tax assets of $282,990 relating to Retravision D.A.D. Ltd have not been recognised in the balance sheet at
30 June 2007. Net deferred tax assets brought forward from the previous financial year of $354,616 have been
de-recognised in the current financial year. This has occurred as it is not probable that these deferred deductible amounts
will be utilised by the subsidiary to offset future tax payable and instead will be utilised by the parent, where they will be
recognised at the time they are used.

{e) Tax consolidation legislation

Retravision (WA} Ltd and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, implemented the tax consolidation legisiation from 1 July 2004.
The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 14c).

On adaption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing
agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability of the whelly-owned entities, in the
case of the defauk of the head entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd.

The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities, fully compensate
Retravision (WA) Ltd for any current tax payable and are compensated by Retravision (WA) Ltd for any current tax
receivable and deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses and unused tax credits that are transferred to Retravision
(WA) Ltd under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined by reference to the amounts
recognised in the wholly-owned entities financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the
head entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of the financial year. The head entity may also require
payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding amounts to
Retravision (WA) Ltd are recognised as transactions with other related entities {see notes 8, 18 and 31).

. PARENT |
2007 | 2006

!
| s | $
7. CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND - ! |
CASH EQUIVALENTS | ’ ’
Cash at bank and on hand {non-interest bearing) 5,103,003 3,611,903 120,855 89,009

The above figures reconcile to cash at the
end of the financial year as shown in the
cash flow statements (note 35).

n
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

o7, CONSOLIDATED .~ PARENT .
B 2007 . 2006 2007 2006
: $ ! $ $ $
8. CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND | : E
OTHER RECEIVABLES | ;
Trade receivables ' 36,513,947 | 28,720,746 | 30,510,358 | 22,966,994
Trade receivables from related parties {i) 5,052,236 5,218,731 10,236,176 ‘ 11,788,778
Less: Provision for impairment {486,904) (570,928) | (295,811} {433,328)
33,368,549 34,322,444

- 41,079,279

40,450,723 |

Other debtars

Finance debtors (i) 1,399,127 . 2,037,763 - -

Less: Provision for impairment . (75,928)! (74,266) - -
1,323,199 | 1,963,497 - -

Rebates receivable . 2,344,014 : 2,590,889 2,049,400 2,467,883
Loans receivable (if) 1 326,708 ' 103,358 - -
Loans receivable from related parties (i) - ! - : - 1,800,000 -
Tax loan receivable from related parties (i} - - - 979,050 525,487
Other debtors 3,297,553 3,723,941 2,450,862 3,042,410
7,291,474 8,381,685 7,279,312 6,035,778

| 48,370,753 | 41,750,234 | 47,730,035 | 40,358,222

(i) Further information relating to related parties is set out in note 31(f).
(ii) Refer note 12 for the non-current portions of these receivables.

Trade Receivables

Included in the consolidated and parent trade receivables are credit claims totalling $5,825,270 {2006: $4,175,947).
These claims have been made in the ordinary course of business and will be credited to members’ accounts once
accepted by the supplier.

Included in trade receivables at 30 June 2007 are amounts due from members of $927,419 (2006: $596,069) which are
outside the 30 days collection period. Management and the directors of the company are continually monitoring and
assessing these members' performance and both the adeguacy and the value of the company's security.

During the year the company has implemented a trade credit insurance policy over all dealers currently trading, The
policy leaves the company exposed to a cumulative amount of $250,000 in any one financial year, but ensures recovery
of the balance of the outstanding amount. Stores that have ceased trading, or who are allowed to settle batances
outside of 90 days are not covered by this policy.

The company in consultation with the insurance company intends to continue 10 support these members subject to the
financial status of the members and the amounts outstanding from time to time being reviewed on an ongoing basis.
However, the avoidance of any loss is substantially dependent upon these members continuing to trade profitably,
returning the accdunts to the normal credit arrangements in the near future and/or the adequacy of the security held and
the value receivable upon realisation. This exposure is reviewed continuously during the year and a reassessment made
each year-end for the purposes of finalising the financial report.

Impaired trade receivables are disclosed at note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

8. CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

Rebates receivable '

These amounts relate to rebates due from suppliers.

Finance debtors '

Retravision D.A.D. Ltd previously sold consumer credit receivables to another entity with this practice ceasing on

31 March 2007. At 30 June 2007, the outstanding balance of these previously securitised receivables has been
recognised as a finance debtor asset {current as above and non-current as per note 12). The sale of these receivables

previously gave rise to a liability, As at 30 June 2007 the amount recognised as a liability is $nil (2006: $1,914,000) {as
per note 18). Further information is disclosed in note 1),

Loans receivable

These amounts relate to loans made, with respect to initial stock purchases, to Centre Stage Pty Ltd in 2005 and

Evangelista Electrical Pty Ltd in 2006 and initial start-up costs to Allmark Investments Pty Ltd with respect to a new store
in Cannington, :

Other debtors

The majority of these amounts refate to monies owed by suppliers with respect to the preferred supplier administration
fee, settlement discount and advertising.

Effective interest rates and credit risk

Information concerning the effective interest rate and credit risk of both current and non-current receivables is set out in
the non-current receivables note {note 12).

CONSOLIDATED  PARENT

2007 | 2006 | 2007 | 2006
$: $ ; $ | $

| | i

9. CURRENT ASSETS - INVENTORIES | |
Finished goods ~ at cost 17.612,923 | 14229033 | 9,914,864 & 6,867,104
Finished goods ~ at net realisable value 1,317,910 , 1,620,121 783,822 1 625,426
Other - at cost : 112,290 48,740 109,323 | 43,028

19,043,123 ' 15,897,894 ' 10,808,009 { 7,535,558

Inventories recognised as an expense for the Group during the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to $344,736,523
(2006: $294,929,846) and for the parent for the year ended 30 June 2007 they amounted to $342,004,664 (2006;
$294,899,616),

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2007
amounted to $593,415 (2006: $229,523) consolidated and $514,953 (2006: $82,612) for the parent. The expense has
been included in ‘cost of sale of goods’ in the income statement.

£ . CONSOLIDATED - PARENT
. 2007 | 2006 2007 | 2006

$ ! $ $ | $
T
10. CURRENT ASSETS — CURRENT . {
TAX ASSETS | ;
Income tax | - } 252,248 - 252,248
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1 CONSOLIDATED " PARENT :
2007 . 2006 | 2007 | 2006
s $ $ $

]

11. CURRENT ASSETS — OTHER | |
Goods on order . 1,639,687 l 1,806,261 1,615,433 1,638,415
Prepayments . 431,170 : 243,269 255,121 59,023
Accrued GST receivable ; 52,058 202,224 33,579 198,186
Claims outstanding receivable | SZS.BGOI 330,023 471,965 227,581
Other I 174,419 171,991 158,733 212,218
2,823,194 2,753,768 2,534,831 2,335,423

, .

12. NON -~ CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE : _

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ! ;
Loans receivable (i} (i) , 817417 1,269.324 | 3,573,000 | 3,750,000
Finance debtors {ii) ! 239,734 404,778 - -
{ 1,057,951 1,674,102 | 3,573,000 | 3,750,000

(i} - Loans receivable recorded in the parent are made to a wholly owned controlled entity — Retravision D.A.D. Ltd. This
loan is for working capital purposes. Further information relating to these loans is set out in note 31({f).

{ii) - Refer to note 8 for the current portions of these receivables.

(a) Fair values

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value.

{b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set out

in the following tables.

2007

Trade receivables
Finance debtors
Rebates receivable
Loans receivable
Other debtors

Weighted average interest
rate or effective interest
rate (%)

Notes

8,12

B, 12

Fixed interest rate:

1 year 1to2 2to3 3to4 Non-interest Total
or less years years years bearing

: : $ $ $ $

- - - - 41,079,279 41,079,279

- - - - 1,562,933 1,562,933

- - - - 2,344,014 2,343,014

304,083 331,257 360,860 125,300 22,625 1,144,125

- - - - 3,297,553 3,297,553

304,083 331,257 360,860 125,300 48,306,404 49,427,904

8.59 B.59 8.59 B.59
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

12. NON - CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

(b) Interest rate risk continued

Fixed interest rate:

2006 1 year 1102 203 3t04 4 105 Over 5 Non-interest Tota!
Notes or less years years years years year bearing
$ $ 3 $ $ $ $ 3
Trade receivables 8 - 33,368,549 33,368,549
Finance debtors 8 12 - - 1,368,275 2,368,275
Rebates receivable 8 - - - - 2,590,889 2,590,889
Loans receivable 812 103,358 111,626 120,555 130,199 140,612 766,332 - 1,372,682
Other debtors 8 - 3723941 3723944
103,358 111,626 120,555 130,199 140,612 766,332 42,051,654 43,424,336
Weighted average interest
rate or effective interest rate (%) 1.72 7.72 1.72 172 1.72 772

{c) Credit risk

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to current and non-current receivables, as the Group has a large
number of dealers throughout three states and one territory. Refer to note 2 for more information on the risk

management policy of the Group.

CONSOLIDATED -

PARENT

13. NON ~ CURRENT ASSETS -

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Shares in associates (note 40}

Shares in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting
and are carried at cost by the parent entity (refer to note 14).
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NoOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

.- CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2007 2006 2007 | 2006
; $ $ S | $
14. NON - CURRENT ASSETS - - : :
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS : !
Shares in controlled entities - at cost - - | 11,783,109 | 11,783,109
Other investments - at cost {i) . 5,500 2,381,171 i 1,744,609
- 5,500 [ 14,164,280 ' 13,527,718
Less: provision for impairment ' . - | (9,209.827) | (8,573,265)
Total other financia! assets - at recoverable ‘amount ! - 5,500 4,954,453 4,954,453

(i) Other investments in the parent entity include the value of a controlled entities tax losses utilised by the parent entity
of $636,562 {2006: $1,739,109).

Refer to note 21 for details of non-current assets pledged as security by the parent or its controlled entities.

Controlled entities

The consolidated financia! statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following controlled entities in
accordance with the accounting policy note described in note 1{b).

Name of entity ' Country of Retravision (WA) Ltd's
incorporation direct or indirect interest
in ordinary shares (ii}

2007 2006
% %

Electcom Ltd (i) Australia 100 100
Electcom (Finance) Pty Ltd . Australia 100 100
Retravision Finance (WA) Ltd Australia 100 100
Retravision D.A.D. Ltd (i) : Australia 00 100
Comgrigg Pty Ltd Australia b o100 100
Best Buy Electrical Pty Ltd {formerly A.C.N. 007 885 510 Pty Ltd) Australia l 100 100
Saverys Homewares Unit Trust Australia {100 100
Saverys Pty Ltd Australia uogﬂ 100

(i) These controlled entities have been granted refief from the necessity to prepare financial statements in accordance
with Class Ord.er 98/1418 {as amended by Class Orders 98/2017, 00/321, 01/1087, 02/248, 02/1017, 04/663,
04/682, 04/1624, 05/542, 06/51) issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. For further
information refer note 32. '

iy The proportian of ownership interest is equal to the voting power held.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

15. NON — CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Consolidated

At 1 July 2005

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount

Transfer cost to/from} hire purchase

Transfer accumulated depreciation to/f{from)
hire purchase

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Impairment of assets
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2006
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Plant and Under hire Total
eguipment purchase
$ $ s
3,648,215 641,146 4,289,361
(2,252,608) (348,053} (2,600,661}
1,395,607 293,093 1,688,700
1,395,607 293,093 1,688,700
200,000 {200,000} -
(56,667) 56,667 -
153,264 372,727 525,991
(394,809} (26,881) (421,690)
(311,943} (107,107) (419,050)
(53,547) - (53,547)
931,905 388,499 1,320,404
3,272,985 644,573 3,917,558
(2,341,080 (256,074) (2,597,154}
931,905 388,499 1,320,404

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2006 plant and equipment with an original cost of $728,494, accumulated
depreciation of $333,685, and a written down value of $394,809 was disposed of. During the year ended 30 June 2006
hire purchase assets with an original cost of $169,300, accumulated depreciation of $142,419, and a written down value

of 326,881 were disposed of,

Y

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciaticn charge
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Plant and Under hire Total
equipment purchase
' $ $ S
931,905 388,499 1,320,404
185,346 - 185,346
(21,002) - (21,002)
(238,342) (134,220) (372,562)
857,907 254,279 1,112,186
2,486,204 434,841 2,921,045
(1,628,297) (180,562) {1,808,859)
857,907 254,279 1,112,186
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NoOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

15. NON - CURRENT ASSETS ~ PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2007 plant and equipment with an original cost of $972,127, accumulated
depreciation of $951,125, and a written down value of $21,002 was disposed of. During the year ended 30 June 2007
hire purchase assets with an original cost of $209,732, accumulated depreciation of $209,732, and a written down value

of $nil were disposed of.

Point of Sale computer equipment recorded under plant and equipment is leased under operating leases to dealers, refer

note 39.

Parent Entity

At 1 July 2005

Cost _
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2006
Cost .
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Plant and Under hire Total
equipment purchase

$ $ $
1,028,303 - 1,028,303
(584,097} - {584,097)
444,206 - 444,206
444,206 - 444,206
44,670 - 44,670
{5.359) - {5.359)
(111,907) - (111,907)
371,610 - 371,610

954,781 - 954,781
(583,171) - {583,171)
371,610 - 371,610

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2006 plant and equipment with an original cost of $118,192 and accumulated

depreciation of $112,833, and a written down value of $5,359 was disposed of.

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net beok amount

L)

Plant and Under hire Totai
equipment purchase
s $ S
371,610 - 371,610
86,250 - 86,250
(4.247) - (4,247)
(100.762) - (100,762)
352,851 - 352,851
1,002,703 - 1,002,703
(649,852) - (649,852)
352,851 - 352,851
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

15. NON - CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2007 plant and equipment with an original cost of $38,328 and accumulated
depreciation of $34,081, and a written down value of $4,247 was disposed of.

Non-current assets pledged as security:
Refer to note 21 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the parent or its controlled entities.

. CONSOUIDATED ..+ = = -PARENT =
2007, 2006 | 2007 | 2006
s $ | $ | $
16. NON - CURRENT ASSETS — DEFERRED i ! %
TAX ASSETS i j |
The balance comprises temporary differences ! |
attributable to: : 1‘
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss . - |
Tax losses ' 123,875 . 123,875 -
Impaired trade receivables ;- 106,899 193,618 88,743 129,998
Employee benefits a 81,149 | 99,127 58,300 51,663
Surplus leased space . . - 168,924 - -
Provision for inventory obsolescence ) ! 83,893 80,533 80,201 35,513
Sundry creditors 1 76,449 91,677 50,955 43,868
Accounts payable other .. 10B,288 136,016 83,904 72,478
Provisions 1 . 7,668 - 7,668 -
Unearned income ) 143,890 56,722 81,511 7,127
Deferred tax assets ! 732,111 826,617 575,157 340,647
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities of parent . )
entity pursuant to set-off provisions (note 22) ’ (33,886) (58,489) {18,576) (19,789)
Net deferred tax assets f 698,225 | 768,128 556,581 320,858
Movements: | !
Opening balance at 1 July 826,617 ! 1,215,924 I 340,647 560,899
Over provision in prior year . {76,917} l - E (11,781)
Credited/(charged) to the income ; f
statement (note 6) . (218,381) {312,390} 110,635 (208,471)
Recognition of prior year tax losses, the use of
which is now considered probable (note 6) 123,875 - 123,875 -
Closing balance at 30 June C 73T 826,617 §75,157 | 340,647
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after i
more than 12 months | 201,239 211,922 178,389 51,663
Deferred tax assets to be recovered
within 12 months ! 530,872 614,695 396,768 288,984
' C732,111 | 826,617 575,157 | 340,647
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

17. NON - CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Website

Consolidated Goodwill Development Total

$ $ S
At 1 July 2005
Cost 2,131,822 7,377 2,139,199
Accumulated amortisation and impairment . {1,801,378) {6,912) (1,808,288)
Net book amount‘ 330,446 465 330,911
Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount 330,446 465 330,911
Amortisation charge ' - {465) (465)
Closing net book amount . 330,446 - 330,446
At 30 June 2006
Cost 2,131,822 7,377 2,139,199
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (1,801,376) {7.377) (1,808,753)
Net book amount ' 330,446 - 330,446
At 30 June 2007
Cost 2,131,822 1,377 2,139,199
Accumnulated amortisation and impairment {1.801,376) (7.3m (1.808.753)
Net book amount 330,446 - 330,446

Amortisation and impairment charges of $nil (2006: $465) are included in administration expenses in the income
statement,

(a) Impairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU's) based on particular acquisition transactions. At both
30 June 2007 and 2006 the carrying value of goodwill relates to the CGU of Electcom Ltd.

The recoverable amount of the Electcom Ltd CGU is determined based on a value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board covering the 2008 financial year. Cash flows

beyond this are extrapolated using estimated growth rates of up to 4%. These growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for Electcom Ltd.

{b) Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

The key assumptions used are budgeted gross margin at 19.9%. Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the future. Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the budget period is 3.3%. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with forecasts included in
industry reports. A post-tax discount rate of 11.6% to discount the farecast future attributable post-tax cash flows has

been used. The same post-tax discount rates were applied in 2006 and 2007. The discount rates used are post-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

(¢} Impairment charge

There has been no impairment in the current or prior year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

# +1LCONSOLIDATED : PARENT
2007 | 2006 2007 2006
$ $ $ $

18. CURRENT LIABILITIES - TRADE AND f

Trade payables
Unearned income

OTHER PAYABLES

47,201,970 } 42,446,149 | 46,273,667 : 41,783,690
!
3,708,297 | 2,003,394 3,335,265 1,685,150

Employee benefits 536,732 453,384 279,679 241,594
Liablity in respect of finance debtors {

{notes 8 and 12) ‘ - 1,914,000 - -
Tax related payable to controlled entity - - 636,562 | 1,766,935
Other payables to controlled entity ‘ - t - 8,977 339,074
Other payables ' 3,544,087 | 4,594,815 3,182,958 3,816,156

© 54,991,086 . 51,411,742 | 53,717,108 49,632,599

19. CURRENT LIABILITIES - : : ‘

BORROWINGS ! :
Secured : |
Bank invoice finance facility (a) 2,961,799 - 12,961,799 ¢ -
Debentures {b) 4,146,106 | 4,820,594 | - -
Other loans - loan fram wholly owned i
controlled entity (c) (note 31(f)) o - ; - | 4248414 | 4,986,007
Hire purchase agreements (d) (note 29(b)) ' 71,761 ! 134,302 - -
Total secured borrowings 7.185,666 . 4,954,896 7,210,213 4,986,007
. I
Unsecured . :
Loans from other parties (e) : 575,000 730,000 - -
Total current borrowings | 7,760,666 5,684,896 7,210,213 4,986,007

(a)

(b)

{0

The bank invoice finance facility is secured by the folIoWing:

{i) Cross guarantee and indemnity between all group entities;

(i) Corporate guarantee and indemnity across all group entities;

(i} Standard shares and securittes mdrtgage over the shares of Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd; and

(v} First registered company fixed and floating charge over all of the assets and undertaking of all group entities
with first priority for $10,902,000.

There was one breach of financial covenant relating to this facility during the year. The bank agreed to waive the
covenant breach and did not demand repayment of facilities.

The debentures are secured by a floating charge over the assets of a wholly owned subsidiary as stipulated in the
Trust Deed. These debentures are a combination of both at call and short term, The interest rate varies from
6.10% - 6.50% {2006: 5.20% - 6.00%).

Other loans (from a wholly owned controlled entity) are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the
company. ’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

19. CURRENT LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS continued
{d) The hire purchase agreements are secured over the hire purchase assets.

{e) The loans from other parties are unsecured and interest on the loan balance is payable at 10% {2006: two loans at
6% and the remainder at 10%).

{f) Interest rate risk exposures for interest rate changes on the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 21.
{g) Fair value disclosures for the Group’'s borrowings are set out in note 21,

{n) Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities and further information on the bank facilities are set
out in note 21.

PARENT
E
20. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS E
Commissions (a) 87,995 64,577 ] - -
Bonus (b) 453,665 331,887 326,586 294,387
Surplus leased space {c} . 96,041 : 187,092 - -
Employee benefits - 12,619 | . 12,619 .
' 650,320 | 583,556 339,205 294,387
]
Movements in the provision for commissions ;
during the financial year are set out below. , . !
Carrying amount at the start of the year : 64,577 39,194 - -
Charged to the income staternent | .

- additional provision recognised ’ 78,182 | 68,532 - -
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits f - (54,764)1 (43,149) - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year i 87,995 ! 64,577 - -

J |
Movements in the provision for bonus during 1
the financial year are set out below. i
Carrying amount at the start of the year ‘ 331,887 | - 294,387 -
Charged to the income statement !

- additional provision recognised ‘ 453,538 L 331,887 326,586 294,387
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits : (331,760) - (294,387) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year ‘ 453,665 334,887 326,586 | 294,387
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_ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

PARENT

|

20.

Movements in the provision for surplus leased
space during the financial year are set out below.

CURRENT LIABILITIES -
PROVISIONS continued

Carrying amount at the start of the year 187,092 85,752 - -
Charged to the income statement : L

- additional provision recognised ' 33,268 ' 150,307 . -
Transfer to non-current provision ; (74,913)' (48,967) - -
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits : (49,406)J - - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year L 96,041 | 187,092 - -
(a) Commissions

(b)

(4]

Provision for commissions represents amounts received from suppliers to pay commissions to sales staff to provide
incentives to sell that supplier's product. it is anticipated that these will be paid within 12 months.

Bonus

Pravision is made for bonuses payable to key management personnel. The level of bonus payablte depends on
performance levels that are measured against agreed key performance indicators. It is anticipated that these will be
paid within 12 months.

Surplus leased space

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1 Lessee Accounting for Surplus Leased Space under a non-canceliable operating
lease, the Group has recognised provisions against four (2006 three) operating leases. The amount recognised is the
total value of future rental payments offset by any sublease income received discounted to a present value of future
cash flows. The interest rate used in the calculation is 7.42% (2006: 7.70%). The expected timing of outflows will
continue over the course of the leases with the last payment due to occur in October 2011,
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2006

"PARENT

2007 i 2007 ] 2006
$ $ $ | $
21. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES - i
BORROWINGS )
Secured ;
Bank invoice finance facility (a) 7,000,000 [ 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000
Debentures (b) 4,060 | - - -
Hire purchase agreements (¢} (note 29(b)) - 253,362 ! 367,221 - -
Total secured and'non-current borrowings 7,257,422 | 7,367,221 i 7,000,000 7,000,000

{a) The bank invoice finance facility is secured by the following:
(iy Cross guarantee and indemnity between all group entities;
(i) Corporate guarantee and indemnity across all group entities;

(i) Standard shares and securities mortgage over the shares of Electcom Ltd and Retravision D.A.D. Ltd; and
{iv) First registered company fixed and floating charge over all of the assets and undertaking of all group entities

with first priority for $10,902,000:

There was one breach of financial covenant relating to this facility during the year. The bank agreed to waive the

covenant breach and did not demand repayment of facilities.
b

Trust Deed. The interest rate varies from 6.10% - 6.50% (2006; 5.20% - 6.00%).

(c) The hire purchase agreements are secured over the hire purchase assets.

The debentures are secured by a floating charge over the assets of a wholly owned subsidiary as stipulated in the

. PARENT . .
2007 | 2006 2007 2006
$ | $ $ $
Total secured liabilities {current and !
non-current) are: !
Bank invoice finance facility 9,961,799 ! 7,000,000 9,961,799 7,000,000
Debentures 4,150,166 ! 4,820,594 - -
Other loans - | - | 4248414 4,986,007
Hire purchase agreements 331,123 | 501,523 - -
1 14,443,088 i 12,322,117 14,210,213 11,986,007
Assets pledged as security ' I |
The carrying amounts of non-current assets : '
pledged as security are: ' :
Fixed and Floating charge {
Trade and other receivables - non-current 1,057,151 | 1,674,102 3,573,000 3,750,000
Investments using equity accounting 57,480 - - -
Other financial assets - 5500 | 4,954.453 | 4,954,453
Plant and equipment 857,905 ; 931,905 352,851 371,609
Plant and equipment under hire purchase | 254,279 | 388,499 - -
' 2,226,815 : 3,000,006 8,880,304 9,076,062

41
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" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

'CONSOLIDATED © ., PARENT
2007 - 2006 2007 2006
$ ! 3 $ $
21. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES - |
BORROWINGS continued : '
The following current assets are also pledged as 3 !
security under the floating charge: :
Cash and cash equivalents 5,103,003 ' 3,611,903 120,855 85,009
Trade and other receivables - current 48,370,753 | 41,750,234 47,730,035 40,358,222
Inventories 19,043,123 | 15,897,894 10,808,009 7,535,558
Other current assets ¢ 2,823,194 | 2,753,768 2,534,831 2,335,423
. 75,340,073 | 64,013,799 | 61,193,730 | 50,318,212
: i
Financing arrangements | i
Unrestricted access was available at balance i !
date to the following lines of credit: : '
Credit standby arrangements . 5
Secured bank overdraft facilities subject to annual a;
reviews with amaounts drawn payable at call totalling - 750,000 - 250,000
Amount of facility used - - - -
Amount of credit standby arrangements |
unused at balance date - 750,000 - 250,000
|
Bank invoice finance facility (a) ‘
Bank invoice finarlce facility 18,000,000 i 18,000,000 18,000,000 18,000,000
Used at balance date (9,961,799) .  (7,000,000) (9,964,799) | (7,000,000)
Amount of bank invoice finance facility f !
unused at balance date * 8,038,201 | 11,000,000 8,038,201 11,000,000
Commercial bill facility | !
Commercial bill facility 1,800,000 | . ) )
Used at balance date - - - -
Amount of commercial bill facility
unused at balance date 1,800,000 - - -
Bank payroll facility »
Bank payroll facility 162,000 ) 162,000 112,000 112,000
Used at balance date - - - -
Amount of bank payroll facility unused ' :
at balance date 162,000 162,000 112,000 112,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

+-~ CONSOLIDATED - PARENT B
~ 2007 | 2006 2007 2006
$ $ S $
: {
21. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES - t
BORROWINGS continued |
Bank encashment facility ;
Bank encashment facility 6,000 | 6,000 5,000 5,000
Used at balance date - 1 - - -
Amount of bank encashment facility unused
at balance date 6,000 6,000 5,000 | 5,000
. ! .
Bank on-line facility ‘ 4
Bank on-line facility ' 510,000 | 510,000 10,000 10,000
Used at balance date - ‘ - - -
Amount of bank on-line facility unused ‘
at balance date 510,000 510,000 10,000 10,000
Total facilities | E
Total facitities . ‘ 20,478,000 [ 19,428,000 18,127,000 18,377,000
Used at balance date | (9,961,799): (7,000,000) | (9,961,799} | (7,000,000)
Amount of total facilities unused } t
at balance date . 10,516,201 12,428,000 8,165,201 11,377,000

{a) The interest rates are 7.39% (2006: 7.91%) {current pomon) and 7.34% (2006: 8.25%) {non-current portion} on the

bank invoice finance facility.
Interest rate risk exposures

The following table sets out the Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by

maturity periods,

Exposures arise predominantly from liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the Group intends to hold fixed rate

liabilities to maturity.

2007

Fixed interest rate:

Bank invoice finance facility
Debentures

Hire purchase agreements
Loans from other parties

L)

Weighted average interest rate or
effective interest rate (%)

Floating

Notes  interestrate 1yearorless 1to2years  2to3years Total
‘ 3 $ $ $ $
18,21 2,961,799 - 7,000,000 - 9,961,799
19,21 3,650,399 495,707 - 4,060 4,150,166
19, 21 - 77,761 76,208 177,154 331,123
19 - 575,000 - - 575,000
6,612,198 1,148,468 7,076,208 181,214 15,018,088

6.68% 6.87% 7.70% 71.67%

43




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

21. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES — BORROWINGS continued
Fixed interest rate:

Floating

w 2006 Notes interestrate 1yearorless 1to2years 2to3years 3todyears Total
‘ $ $ b $ $ $

1 Bank invoice finance facility 19 - - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000
| Debentures 19, 21 4,340,707 479,887 - - - 4,820,594
Hire purchase agreements 19, 21 - 134,302 113,859 76,208 177,154 501,523

Loans from other parties 19 - 730,000 - - - 730,000

4,340,707 1,344,189 7,113,859 76,208 177,154 13,052,117

Weighted average interest rate or
effective interest rate (%) " 560 7.91 8.24 7.70 7.70

L

Fair value

The fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying value.

, CONSOLIDATED -+ - - .PARENT
. 2007 | 2006 2007 2006
! $ | $ s $
, !
22. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES - |
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES F
The balance comprises temporary differences |
attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss ' :
Prepayments , ' 2,743 3,683 2,740 | 2,890
Depreciation ' 31,143 54,789 15,836 E 16,899
Other - 17 - -

33,886 . 58,489 18,576 19,789
Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to '
set-off provisions (note 16) ! (33,886) | (58,489) (18,576) {19,789)
Net deferred ax liability ; -
|
|

Movements: .

Opening balance at 1 July 58,489 5,566 19,789 18,750
Under provision in prior year - 80,043 - 235
Credited/{charged) to the income statement {note 6} (24,603)1 (27,120) {1,213) 804
Closing balance at 30 June ' 33,886 | 58,489 18,576 19,789

1 i

Deferred 1ax liabilities to be recovered ‘ :
after more than 12 months 31,143 ! 54,789 15,836 16,899

Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered g ‘ 1
within 12 months ) 2,743 3,700 2,740 2,890
33,886 58,489 | 18,576 19,789
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 IUNE 2007

-~ PARENT

2007 2006
$ ) 5 $
23. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES i
- PROVISIONS i
Surplus eased space 339,859 } 375,987 - -
Employee benefits 355,654 330,424 181,706 © 172,209
695,513 | 706,411 181,706 172,209
E
Movement in the provision for surplus leased space ;
during the financial year is set out below.
Carrying amount at the start of the year 375,987 i 398,323 - -
Charged to the income statement :

- additional provision recognised 58,966 ' 106,851 . -
Transfer from current provisions 74,913 ( 48,967 - -
Less provision no longer required due to ;
sub-lease of property - {87,015} - -
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (170,007). {91,139) - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 339,859 | 375,987 - -
24, CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
{a) Share capital l
14,500,000 ordinary shares fully paid !

(2006: 14,500,000). 1,297,192 1 1,297,192 1,297,192 1,297,192
(b) Movements in ordinary share capital

Date Details Number of Shares $
1 July 2005 Opening balance 145,000 1,297,192
25 Novernber 2005 Restructure of share capital 14,355,000 -
30 June 2006 Closing Balance 14,500,000 1,297,192
30 June 2007 Closing Balance 14,500,000 1,297,192

{c) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote,

and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.
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25. RESERVES AND RETAINED
PROFITS/{(ACCUMULATED LOSSES)

{a) Reserves

Forfeited share reserve

The forfeited share reserve is used to record the
amount of paid up capital forfeited by shareholders
after costs of forfeiture and reissue.

(b} Retained profits/(accumulated losses)
Retained profits/{accumulated losses) at the
beginning of the financial year

Net profit attributable to equity holders of '
Retravision (WA) Ltd

Retained profits/{accumulated losses) at the
end of the financial year

26. DIVIDENDS

There have been no dividends declared or
paid during the year (2006: $nil).
Franking credits available for subsequent

financial years based on a tax rate of 30%
(2006: 30%]).

; 3,100 | 3,100 3,100 3,100
g
1,310,509 - 849,544 !(3,418,113) (4,765,645)
l !
3,468,264 | 460,965 | 3,138,715 | 1,347,532
! 1
' 4,778,773 : 1,310,509 l {279,398) (3,418,113)
! |
t f
. |
. :
‘ |
—
| 9124506 | 7963017 | 9,124,506 | 7,963,017

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:
(a) Franking credits that will arise from the payment of the current tax liability, (2006: franking credits that will reduce

upon receipt of current tax asset);

(b) Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date; and
(c} Franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date.
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CONSOLIDATED - - . PARENT
2007 2006 2007 2006
_ $! 3 $ $
27. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL :
DISCLOSURES t 5
(a) Directors : ;
For a list of directors see note 31.
(b) Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits 1,214,606 1,017,216 913,078 754,490
Post-employment benefits ’ 108,036 80,675 80,898 | 66,828
1,322,642 . 1,107,891 | 993,976 821,318
28. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION i
During the year the following fees were paid or } '
payable for services provided by the auditor of ‘ !
the parent entity, and its related practices: :
(a) Audit Services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm :
Audit and review of financial reports and other \I |
audit work under the Corporations Act 2001 119,871 159,699 89,700 63,070
Other audit services ' ' . E
Dealer levy audit ! 3,200 I 3,350 - -
Total remuneration for audit services ! 123,071 | 163,049 89,700 63,070
(b) Non-Audit services } o
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm (i) 3,025 6,050 - -
Total remuneration : . 126,096 : 169,099 89,700 63,070

() Itis the Group’s policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertise and experience with the Group are important. In 2007 additional services
were required with respect to Debenture Prospectus Number 10 (2006: the Debenture Prospectus Number 8, It is
the Group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.
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' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

INSOLIDATED " PARENT

2006 | 2007 2006
$ | S $
29. COMMITMENTS i ;
(a) Operating leases |
Commitments for minimum lease payments in i
relation to non-cancellable operating leases are i
payable as follows: : |
Within one year : 2,652,560 : 2,841,794 233,783 216,675
Later than one year but not later than 5 years | 7,833,950 9,018,980 654,880 253,660
b 1
Later than 5 years i 1,928,809 | 3,248,239 - -
~ 12,415,319 | 15,109,013 | 298,663 470,335

The Group leases various offices and motor vehicles under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one month to
eight years (2006: three months and nine years), and two years to three years (2006: one year to three years) in the
parent. The leases have varying terms, escalation cfauses and renewal rights, On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated.
ek e T T CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2007 2006 ‘ 2007 l 2006
$ $ $ $
. ! )
Future minimum lease payments expected to be ‘ |
received in relation to non-cancellable sub-leases of ;
operating leases are as follows: ) ‘ '
Within one year 176,326 | 174,196 - -
Later than one year but not later than S years 387,105 ! 563,431 - -
563,431 ! 737,627 | - -

{b) Finance Leases

The Group leases various leasehold improvements and motor vehicles with a carrying amount of $254,279 (2006:
$388,499) under finance leases expiring within nine months and three years (2006: one to four years). There are varying
buy back options under the terms of these leases.

‘CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2007 ! 2006 2007 - 2006
; 5 $ $ $
Commitments in relation to finance leases are 9
payable as follows: ;
Within one year [ 99,818 167,628 - -
Later than one year but not later than 5 years I 277,120 413,040 - -
Minimum lease payments ! 376,938 580,668 - -
Less: Future finance charges . (45,815) | (79,145) - -
Recognised as a liability © 331,123 ) 501,523 - -
Representing lease liabilities: ' ‘
Current (note 19) 77,761 134302 ! - -
Non - current (note 21) 253,362 l 367,221 - -
331,123 501,523 | - -

The weighted average interest implicit in the leases is 7.70% (2006: 7.68%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

30. TRUST DEED

A controlled entity, Retravision Finance (WA} Ltd, is not in breach of the Trust Deed condition which requires its liabilities

not to exceed 95% of its tangible assets.

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Al financial benefits provided by Retravision (WA} Ltd or its controlled entities to related parties (other than benefits

approved at a General Meeting} were prowded on arms length terms,

(a) Parent entity

The ultimate Australian parent entity is Retravision (WA) Ltd.

(b} Subsidiaries :

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 14.

(c) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 27.
(d} Directors and director related entities

The directors of Retravision (WA} Ltd during the current and previous financial year were;

W A Harries

D Dorsett-lynn

G Groppohi

G | Tomich

R G Maidment appointed 25 November 2005
R M Doust retired 25 Novernber 2005

G A Kemp resigned 22 February 2006

G W Gaynor resigned 22 February 2006

B 5 Mclean resigned 22 February 2006 .

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
. ! 2007 2006 2007 2006
| $ L $ S $
; i
{e) Transactions with directors and i ]
director related entities _ i
1. Purchases by directors, or their director I l
related entities, through the agency and }
wholesale divisions. ' 54,943,757 | 59,122,539 54,943,757 59,122,539
2. The directors, or their director related \ !
entities, were charged franchise fees, - E
advertising fees and recovered costs. i 723,373 | 975,050 662,223 706,364

3. The directors, or their director related entities,
depositedf{withdrew) funds from a controlled
entity on a net basis, bearing interest at
normal commercial rates. i {70,578) (146,287)
4. The directors, or their director related entities, . !
made repayments to a controlled entity with ! '
respect to the finance/rental agreements, : - ‘ 16,749
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© CONSOLIDATED + 75 PARENT

2007 - 2006 2007 2006
$ $ $

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued

{e} Transactions with directors and i
director related entities continued

5. The directors, or their director related entities,

paid interest to a contralled entity, . - 51,436 . -
6. The directors, or their director related entities, i l

received an amount of interest on funds deposited - ‘

with a controlled entity, ' 71,907 | 63,567 - -

7. The directors, or their director related entities, !
received an amount of advertising income
from a controlled entity. 20231 22,646 -
8. The directors, or their director related entities,
sotd goods and services to the parent entity '
and the consolidated group. ‘ 237,067

208,887 237,067 208,887

Other amounts receivable from and payable to
directors of the company and controlled entities
and their director related entities

Aggregate amounts receivable at balance date | 9,922 | 2,409 - -
Aggregate amounts payable at balance date . 578,436 ' 627,347 45,336 23,669

No provisions for impairment have been raised in relation 1o any outstanding balances, and no expense has been
recognised in respect of impaired debts due from director or director related entities (2006: $nil).

- CONSOLIDATED -+ PARENT

2007 | 206 2007 2006
Number | Number Number Number
' i
i }
Equity transactions with directors and ; '
their director related entities ' ‘
The following aggregate number of shares were
held by directors of the company (or their director ' 1
related entities) at balance date: :
Ordinary fully paid shares in the parent entity 1,500,000 . 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued

(f} Wholly owned group

The wholly owned group consists of the parent entity, Retravision (WA) Ltd, and its wholly owned controlled entities.
Ownership interests are set out in note 14,

CONSOLIDATED 7 . 'PARENT
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ s 3
i
Taxation Consolidation (see note 1{(c) and note 6) i
Current tax receivable assumed from whaolly-owned tax |
consolidated entities ; - - - 1,053,786
Current tax payable assumed from wholly-owned ‘
tax consolidated entities \ - - 979,050 495,778
Current payables (tax funding agreement) from
wholly-owned tax.consolidated entities ! -, - 636,562 1,766,935
Current receivables (tax funding agreement) from ' [
wholly-owned tax consolidated entities ' - - 979,050 525,487
| | |
Loans to/from other related parties . i
Loans to subsidiary ! |
Beginning of the year ? . -} 3,750,000 | 3,750,000
Loans advanced : - l - | 22,497,000 | 14,424,500
Loan repayment received : iy - 1(20,874,000) [ (14,424,500)
Interest charged . - 259,746 256,556
Interest received - - | (259,746) |  (256,556)
End of year . - | 5373000 | 3,750,000
Loans from subsidiary ! |‘
Beginning of the year . - | 4,986,007 | 5,745,655
Loans advanced - - | 64,987,688 | 44,635,000
Loan repayment received - (‘ - (65,725,877} | (45,411,588}
Interest charged - - 706,748 667,866
Interest received - - (706,152) (650,926)
End of year ‘ ! - - | 4248414 | 4,986,007
!
Net tax loans to/(from) subsidiary - i |
tax funding agreements : L
Beginning of the year : - - | (1.261,848) |  (689,199)
Loan repayments received/(paid) from/(to) subsidiaries - - - 1,241,448 -
Current tax receivable/(payable) from/(to) subsidiaries : - - 342,488 (558,008)
Over provision of prior year tax assumed from
subsidiaries ! - - - 5,759
End of year ' - | - 342,488 | (1,241,448)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

. PARENT _
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ | $ $

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
continued !

(g) Transactions with other related parties

1. The company sells goods to controlled entities on '
normal commercial terms and conditions. ) - - 48,198,020 48,195,509

2. Administration, staff support, computer and
occupancy services provided by the company to

controlled entities. 703,238 955,798
3. Advertising income provided to a controlled entity. - - 435,228 384,728
4. Advertising expenditure charged by a controlled .

entity. . - - 457,421 311,357

Retravision (WA) Ltd has a working capital 'deficiency of $1,234,285 at 30 June 2007 (2006: $4,342,533). However, the
company has access to the Group's working capitat of $10,776,512 {2006: $6,585,853). In addition the company is a
party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, refer note 32.

32. DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE

Retravision (WA) Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd and Electcom Lid are parties to a Deed of Cross Guarantee under which each
company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly owned entities have been relieved
from the requirements to prepare a financial report and directors’ repart under Class Order 98/1418 {(as amended) issued
by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

The above companies represent a “Closed Group” for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other parties
to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Retravision (WA) Ltd, they also represent the “Extended Closed
Group”. .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

-CLOSED GROUP

32. DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE continued

Set out below is a consolidated income statement and a summary of
movements in consolidated retained profits for the year ended 30 June
2007 of the Closed Group consisting of Retravision {(WA) Ltd, Retravision
D.A.D. Ltd and Electcom Ltd. '

Income Statement
Sale of goods
Cost of sale of goods
Gross profit from sale of goods
Other revenue
Revenue from services
Other revenue

Expenses
Administration
Information systems
Marketing and store operations
Wholesale distribution
Retail
Finance operations
Borrowing costs

Share of associate’s net praofit accounted for using the equity method
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit attributable to equity holders of Retravision (WA) Ltd

Summary of movements in consolidated retained profits
Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year
Profit after income tax expense for the year

Retained profits at the end of the financial year

388,217,207 | 332,793,306
370,273,954 | 315,023,995
17,943,253 | 17,769,311
397,625 421,946
2,499,446 | 2,401,618
2,897,071 2,823,564
4,469,908 6,072,424
1,235,954 1,135,184
988,969 1,097,418
310,912 418,052
5,987,782 | 7,202,028
1,771,566 | 1,860,421
1,530,262 | 2,064,446
16,295,353 | 19,849,973
46,480 .
4,591,451 742,902
1,198,931 358,007
3,392,520 | 384,895
!
951,194 | 566,299
3,392,520 384,895
4,343,714 951,194
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‘ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

" CLOSED GROUP

§ 2007 2006
E $ $
!
32. DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE continued !
Set out below is a consolidated balance shéet as at 30 June 2007 of the Closed |
Group consisting of Retravision (WA} Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd and Electcom Ltd. |
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ' 4,118,610 2,705,238
Trade and other receivables | 48,384,696 41,743,389
Inventories i 19,043,123 @ 15,897,894
Current tax assets f - 252,250
Other . 2,823,066 | 2,753,559
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS . 74,369,495 63,352,330
NON - CURRENT ASSETS |
Trade and other receivables i 1,057,151 1,674,102
Investments accounted for using the equity method ] 57,480 -
Other financial assets i 650,000 655,500
Property, plant and equipment ] 1,066,806 1,298,531
Deferred tax assets } 697,360 768,453
intangible assets | 330,445 330,445
TOTAL NON - CURRENT ASSETS ' 3,859,242 4,727,031
TOTAL ASSETS 78,228,737 68,079,361
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 54,961,073 51,320,378
Borrowings 7,862,974 5,850,309
Current tax fiability 1,161,489 -
Provisions 650,320 583,556
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES i 64,635,856 57,754,243
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES '
Borrowings i 7,253,362 7,367,221
Provisions | 695513 706,411
TOTAL NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES ' 7,948,875 8,073,632
TOTAL LIABILITIES i 72,584,731 65,827,875
NET ASSETS ! 5644006 | 2,251,486
EQUITY ;
Contributed equity 1,297,192 1,297,192
Reserves + 3,100 3,100
Retained profits 4,343,714 951,194
TOTAL EQUITY | 5,644,006 2,251,486

33. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

The directors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements
that have significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or
the state of affairs of the Group in financial years subsequent to the financial year ended 30 June 2007,

34, SEGMENT INFORMATICN
Description of segments

The principal activity of the Group is the buying, wholesaling and retailing of electrical goods.
As there is only one significant operating segment for the Group, separate business segment information is not provided.
The principal activities of the Group occur in one geographic segment being Australia. Therefore separate geographical

segments are not provided.




RETRA SIO“

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2007 2006 | 2007 l 2006
$ $ | s $
| ;
35. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX ; |
TO THE NET CASH FLOWS FROM ! |
OPERATING ACTIVITIES | |
Profit after tax ¢ 3,468,264 . 460,965 3,138,715 1,347,532
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment . 372,562 419,050 100,762 111,807
Impairment write down of investment in '
controlled entity | - - 636,562 -
Impairment write-downs of property, plant and i 1
equipment and goodwill : - 53,547 - -
Amortisation of other intangible assets ! - 465 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment | 1,788 624 4,247 5,359
Share of associates net profit ! (46,480) - - -
Non-cash interest on debentures ' - - 596 16,940
. . 3,796,134 934,651 3,880,882 1,481,738
Changes in operating assets and liabilities ! |
Increase in trade and other receivables {4,866,633):: (626,223) {5,380,939) (1,001,126)
(Increase)Decrease in inventories ) (3,145,229); 3,949,613 (2,272,451) (98,860)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables - 2,138,927 E (3,372,290) 3,478,163 (174,998)
Increase in provisions ; 55,866 | 376515 54,315 355,474
Increase/(Decrease) in income tax balances 1,483,639 ‘ 1,257,849 l {1,042,484) ; 1,465,040
Net cash inflowXoutflow) from operating a;tivities (537.296) 2,520,115 5 {2,282,514) | 2,028,268

36. NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
The Group acquired $nil (2006: $372,727) of property, plant and equipment by means of lease/hire purchase agreements.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In December 2006, the Group made a payment of $45,000 in full and final settlement of the claim by Mr Andrew Heard
and Mr Mark Hall the Joint and Several Liquidators of C.T.0.H, Pty Ltd (in Liguidation) formerly trading as PZ electrical.
This is recorded as an administration expense in the Income Statements.

The Group has the following contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007.

(a) A claim by Evangelos Litis Nominees Pty Ltd. The claim was received on 28 July 2006 for amounts owing in respect

of unpaid credit claims in the amount of $118,470 during the period 14 January 2000 to 6 April 2005. The Group
. has disclaimed liability, has lodged a counterclaim in the amount of $43,190 and is currently defending the claim,

(b} Cross guarantees given by Retravision (WA) Ltd, Retravision D.A.D. Ltd and Electcom Ltd are described in note 32.
There are deficiencies in net assets in Retravision D.A.D. Ltd. These guarantees may give rise to liabilities if either the
parent or the subsidiaries do not meet their obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities
subject to the guarantees. No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above contingent liabilities.

Other than the matters referred to above, in the normal course of its business the company and its controlled entities
occasionally receive claims and other matters arising from its operations. In the opinion of the directors all such matters
are without merit or are of such a kind or involved such amounts that would not have a material adverse effect on the
operating results or financial position of the Group if disposed of unfavourably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

38. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Instruments used by the Group

The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to
ftuctuations in interest rates in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policies (refer to note 2).
Interest rate swap contracts

It is policy to protect part of the Invoice Finance Facility from exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly, the Group
has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to pay interest at fixed rates. Swaps currently in
place cover $7,000,000 of borrowings which is 39% (2006: 39%) of the total $18,000,000 facility. The fixed interest rate
i5 6.34% (2006: 6.34%) and the variable rate is 6.39% (2006: 5.98%). At 30 June 2007, the notional principal amounts
and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap contract is as follows:

- .~ CONSOLIDATED _ PARENT _
2006

: 2007 | 2006 [ 2007
5 $ $ $
: 1 !
Periods of expiry ’ i
Under 1 year : 21,183 | . 1 21,183 -
12 years | - 20,775 | . 20,775
' 21,183 . 20,775 | 21,183 - 20,775

The contract requires settlement of net interest payable every month. The settlement dates are the last working day of
each calendar month. The contract is settled on a net basis. At balance date for both the Group and the parent entity
the fair value is not considered material,

Credit and interest rate risk exposures
Refer to notes 2 and 21 for the Group's policy and exposure to credit and interest rate risk.

39. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases Point of Sale computer equipment under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease
payments receivable on leases of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

U CONSOUDATED . PARENT

‘ 2007 | 2006 2007 2006

L
"
Ll

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of property, plant and equipment
not recognised in the financial statements are
receivable as follows:

Within one year _ ; 18,304 10,169 - -
Later than one year but not later than 5 years ! 30,507 * - - -
: 48,811 . 10,169 . .




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

40. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(a) Carrying amounts
Information relating to unlisted associates incorporated in Australia is set out below.
Ownership Interest

Name of Company Principal Activity . 2007 ! 2006
. % 9’0
Retravision Pty Lid Electrical buying group 33 l -
_ _ Lo PARENT :
2007 | 2006 | 2007 | 2006
$ $ ! $ $
. | ?
Retravision Pty Ltd : \ 57,480 | - | - -
1

(b) Movements in carrying amounts ‘ [{ '
Carrying amounts at the beginning of the year - - - -
Cost of shares . 11,000 . - - -
Share of profits after income tax : 46,480 | - L - -
Carrying amounts at the end of the year 57,480 | - - -

1
(c) Share of assagiate's net profits or losses 3 f
Profit before income tax ] 63,595 ‘ - - -

Income tax expense f (17,115} - - -
Profit after income tax . 46,480 l - - -
(d) Summarised financial information of associates
Gross amounts of:
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss)
$ $ s $
2007 )
Retravision Pty Ltd 4,260,129 3,766,905 3,838,369 {13,530}
2006
Retravision Pty Ltd 4,929,617 4,422,863 3,796,324 127,996
" CONSQLIDATED
2007 2006
$ $
(e) Share of associates’ expenditure commitments,
other than for tbe supply of inventories
Lease commitments ‘ 13,962 -
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DIReCTOR’S DECLARATION

In the directors’ opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 10 to 57 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007,
including; :

{iy complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regufations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

{i) giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity’s financial pasition as at 30 June 2007 and
of their performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable; and

(c) at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Extended Closed
Group identified in note 32 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become,
subject by virtue of the deed of ¢ross guarantee described in note 32.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

/

W A Harries (Chairman)
Perth
Dated this 315t day of October 2007
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_ misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraug or error. In making those risk assessments, the audltor‘

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS B

PrlcewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 739',433_ 757

Qw1 o

250 St Georges: Tenace

PERTH WA 6000 .

GPO Box D198

) ' o PERTH WA:6840°
: . DX 77 Perth 3

-+ Australla

‘ wwpwc cemlau

Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Retravision (WA) Ltd

Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Retravision (WA} Ltd (the company), which comprrsas the balance

- sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the :
_ year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory riotes and ‘the’ d;recrors

declaration for both Retravision {(WA) Ltd and the Retravision (WA) Ltd Group (the consolidated entrty) The consolidated
entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial
year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report i
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting tnterpretatlons) and the " _
Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevantto the - -
preparation and fair presentation of the fmancraE report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or-
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are: reasonabte inthe
circumstances. In Note 1(a), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 10T’ resenrarron of .
Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivatents to International Financial Repomhg.Standards
ensures that the consolidated financial statements and notes comply wrth Internationa Fmancrat Repomng Standards
Auditors’ responsibility '

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our: ud n- o
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply wrth rel_ ar;t eihrcaf
requirements relatmg to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obrarn reasonable ‘assurarice whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts ancf disclosures.
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the r

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in.order. 1;0
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an:ppinion on-

_ the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness, of ; accountmg

- presentation of the financial report.

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as wet\ as evaluatrn the_ overali

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Our procedures include reading the other information in the Annual Repori to. determlne whether n contalns any
material inconsistencies with the financial report.

For further explanation of an audit, visit our website http/Awww.pwe, com/aufﬂnancaalstatementaud!t . : .
Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by dlrectors or management.'-' :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for our aud;t ‘
opinion. ‘ :

independence : N : :
tn conducting our audit, we have complied with the mdependence requirements of the Corporat:ons Act 2001
Auditors’ opinion on the financial report
In our opinion: : .
{a) the financial report of Retravision (WA} Ltd is in accordance with the Corporat.lons Act 2001 mctudmg

() giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2007 and
of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accolinting lnterpretatlons) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b} the consolidated financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Repomng Standards as
disclosed in Note 1(3)

Trardbonatbotes

PricewaterhouseC oopers

MR

Pierra Dreyer
Partner

31 Octobex 2007
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